
First SelectmanGregg Schuster

Public Hearing
Thursday, January 6, 2011

Colchester Town Hall

Meeting Room 1 - 7:00pm

1. Call to Order

2. Discussion on Joining the Chatham Health District

3. Adjourn

.:":.:

.:.: ;

~~: .~'::';-~:~

.......,
= C")
<== C)
CJ (--
rq :.J .~.,;

c--:;
~rrl

N .-=; (j
C) ". ,.: ;".... -
~ :2:;~-- ::'''0
co

n
CJl
co

127 NORWICH AVENUE, COLCHESTER, CT 06415 • (860) 537-7220 • FAX (860) 537-0547





First Selectman

U1

Board of Selectmen Regular Meeting Agenda
Thursday, January 6, 2011

Colchester Town Hall

Gregg Schuster

Meeting Room 1-
Immediately Following Public Hearing at 7:00pm

1. Call to Order

2. Additions to the Agenda

3. Approve Minutes of the December 16, 2010 Public Hearing

4. Approve Minutes of the December 16, 2010 Regular Board of Selectmen
Meeting

5. Approve Minutes of the December 22, 2010 Special Board of Selectmen Meeting

6. Citizen's Comments

7. Boards and Commissions -Interviews and/or Possible Appointments and
Resignations

8. Budget Transfers

9. Tax Refunds & Rebates

10. Discussion and Possible Action on Inland Wetland Fees

11. Discussion and Possible Action on Joining the Chatham Health District

12. Discussion and Possible Action on Extension of Contract with Consultant for
Senior Center Study Group

13. Discussion and Possible Action on Public Health Preparedness Contract

14. Discussion and Possible Action on Restated Version of the Town of Colchester
Police Department Pension Plan

15. Discussion and Possible Action on Public Works Director Job Description

127 NORWICH AVENUE, COLCHESTER, CT 06415 • (860) 537-7220 • FAX (860) 537-0547



Board of Selectmen Regular Meeting Agenda - Thursday, January 6, 2011
Colchester Town Hall -- Meeting Room 1 -Immediately Following Public Hearing at 7:00 p.m.
Page 2of2

16. Discussion and Possible Action on Vehicle Policy (First Reading)

17. Citizen's Comments

18. First Selectman's Report

19. Liaison Report

20. Adjourn



First SelectmanGregg Schuster

Board of Selectmen Regular Meeting Minutes
Thursday, December 16, 2010

Colchester Town Hall

Meeting Room 1 -
Immediately Following Public Hearing at 7:00pm

r-..,)

=
c:::::>

-:'.:1

l'~' .-
, .~ ..'-) .
'._: (;;_.... '--..
.-": ~ .•~ /

) ..

i~: ';! l)

?·J o
C,
-'-1

MEMBERS PRESENT: First Selectman Gregg Schuster, Selectman Rosemary Coyle, Selectman Stan Soby,
and Selectman Greg Cordova
MEMBERS ABSENT: Selectman James Ford
OTHERS PRESENT: Linda Neal, Nancy Bray, Dot Mrowka, Sal Tassone, Judge Jodi Thomas, Wendy Mis, Dave
Anderson, members of the Health District Task Force, Ryan Blessing, Katy Nally, AI Hemingway, and other
members of the public.

1. Call to Order
First Selectman G. Schuster called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.

2. Additions to the Agenda
None

3. Approve Minutes of the December 2,2010 Public Hearing
R. Coyle moved to approve the minutes of the December 2,2010 Public Hearing,
seconded by S. Soby. Unanimously approved. MOTION CARRIED.

4. Approve Minutes of the December 2, 2010 Board of Selectmen Regular Meeting'
R. Coyle moved to approve the minutes of the December 2,2010 Board of Selectmen
Regular meeting, seconded by S. Soby. Unanimously approved. MOTION CARRIED.

5. Citizen's Comments
None

6. Boards and Commissions - Interviews and/or Possible Appointments and
Resignations

a. Planning & Zoning Commission. Member David Gesiak to be re-appointed
for a three-year term to the Planning & Zoning Commission to expire
12/31/2013. David Gesiak to be interviewed.
David Gesiak was not present.

127 NORWICH AVENUE, COLCHESTER, CT 06415 • (860) 537-7220 • FAX (860) 537-0547



Board of Selectmen Regular Meeting Minutes - Thursday, December 16, 2010
Colchester Town Hall- Meeting Room 1 - Immediately following Public Hearing at 7:00 p.m.
Page 20f4

b. Board of Assessment Appeals (two-year term to expire on 11/21/2012).
Tearice Peters was interviewed on 12/0212010 and John Bogush was
interviewed on 11/18/2010. Discussion and Possible Appointment of
Tearice Peters or John Bogush to the Board of Assessment Appeals.
Chairman of the Board of Assessment Appeals addressed the Board of
Selectmen and recommended John Bogush. S. Soby moved to appoint John
Bogush to the Board of Assessment Appeals for a two-year term to expire
11/21/2010, seconded by G. Cordova. Unanimously approved. MOTION
CARRIED.

c. Sewer & Water Commission (three-year term to expire on 12/31/2013). Ken
Fargnoli was interviewed on 11/18/2010. Discussion and Possible
Appointment of Ken Fargnoli to the Sewer & Water Commission.
R. Coyle moved to appoint Ken Fargnoli to the Sewer & Water Commission as a
regular member for a term to expire 12/31/2013, seconded by G. Cordova.
Unanimously approved. MOTION CARRIED.

d. Police Commission. Steve Petty to be interviewed.
Steve Petty was interviewed.

e. Police Commission. Patrick Mickens to be interviewed.
Patrick Mickens was interviewed.

f. Police Commission. Discussion and Possible Appointment of Frank
Jackter, John W. Carroll IV, Robert L. Kanaitis, Patrick Mickens, or Steve
Petty to the Police Commission.

Open Terms to Expire On:
i. 11/01/12

ii. 11/01/11

R. Coyle moved to appoint Patrick Mickens to the Police Commission as a
regular member for a term to expire 11/01/12, there were no seconds. No further
action taken.

7. Budget Transfers
S. Soby moved to approve the budget transfers for the Fire Department of $731 (12202
44223) to $731 (12204-44223), Fleet Maintenance of $1,800 (13202-48404) and $400
(13202-44223) to $2,200 (13202-46226), and Highway Department of $662 (13201
40101) to $662 (13201-40105), seconded by G. Cordova. Unanimously approved.
MOTION CARRIED.

8. Tax Refunds & Rebates
S. Soby moved to approve the tax refunds in the amount of $389.09 to Toyota Motor
Credit Corp., $23.49 to Latonya Kupper, $6.52 to Rose and Michael Paggioli, and $23.21
to Steven Goodwin, seconded by R. Coyle. Unanimously approved. MOTION CARRIED.

9. Discussion and Possible Action on Proclamation for Judge Jodi Thomas
R. Coyle moved to approve the proclamation for Judge Jodi Thomas, seconded by S.
Soby. Unanimously approved. MOTION CARRIED. First Selectman G. Schuster
presented on behalf of the Board of Selectmen a proclamation honoring Judge Jodi
Thomas' service to the Town of Colchester as the Probate Judge. Lebanon First
Selectwoman Joyce Okonuk was present and spoke in favor of Judge Thomas as well.



Board of Selectmen Regular Meeting Minutes - Thursday, December 16, 2010
Colchester Town Hall •• Meeting Room 1 -Immediately following Public Hearing at 7:00 p.m.
Page 30f4

10. Discussion and Possible Action on Health District Task Force Recommendation
Health District Task Force Chairman and members of the Task Force presented their
recommendation to the Board of Selectmen and answered questions from the Board.
Discussion on mandatory contracts, reversal of contracts, satellite offices, grant funding,
contract monitoring, the effect on the dental program, office space needs, per capita
costs based on staffing, ability to respond to an emergency, decreases in net assets, net
savings to the Town by joining, direction of State mandating Towns to join health districts,
and the option of creating a new health district. G. Cordova moved to accept the
recommendation of the Health District Task Force to join the Chatham Health District and
pursuant to Connecticut General Statute 19a-241 hold a Public Hearing on Thursday,
January 6th at 7:00p.m., seconded by S. Soby. Unanimously approved. MOTION
CARRIED.

R. Coyle excused herself from the meeting at 8:13 p.m.

11. Discussion and Possible Action on Release of Brookstone Estates Subdivision
Surety Bond
S. Soby moved to release the remaining Brookstone Estates Subdivision Surety Bond
(Westchester Fire Insurance Company Bond #K07740359) in the amount of $60,982.00
as recommended by the Town Engineer, seconded by G. Cordova. Unanimously
approved. MOTION CARRIED.

12. Discussion and Possible Action on Renewal of Exercise Instructor Contract
S. Soby moved to renew the contract with Sue Roos, Senior Center Exercise Instructor,
beginning January 1, 2011 and ending December 31,2011, and to authorize the First
Selectman to sign all necessary documents, seconded by G. Cordova. Unanimously
approved. MOTION CARRIED.

R. Coyle returned to the meeting at 8:15 p.m.

13. Discussion and Possible Action on AFLAC Wingspan Benefits/Reimbursement
Services
R. Coyle moved to approve the Reimbursement Services Agreement with AFLAC
Wingspan Benefits and authorize the First Selectman to sign all necessary documents,
seconded by S. Soby. Unanimously approved. MOTION CARRIED.

14. Discussion and Possible Action on Ad-Hoc Facilities Committee
Discussion on timetable and direction of Ad-Hoc Facilities Committee. No action taken.

15. Discussion and Possible Action on Police Commission
Discussion on response from the town attorney regarding Selectman Coyle's inquiries.
No action taken.

16. Discussion and Possible Action on Parks & Recreation Program Fund
No action taken.

17. Citizen's Comments
Discussion with Civics class students.

18. First Selectman's Report
First Selectman G. Schuster commented on the return of possible State streamflow
regulations and their effect on the Town of Colchester and that Colchester has its first
CERT class graduate this week.



Board of Selectmen Regular Meeting Minutes - Thursday, December 16, 2010
Colchester Town Hall -- Meeting Room 1 -Immediately following Public Hearing at 7:00 p.m.
Page 4 of4

19. Liaison Report

S. Soby commented that the Planning & Zoning Commission has a proposal for the truck
school to expand in a different building in Town, the developer of the gas station on Rt.
85 has a proposal for sidewalk development, and on the updating of the Zoning laws.
The Police Commission has been discussing their budget priorities, the rules and
regulations need to be revised, and they are beginning to work on the 5-year equipment
plan.

20. Adjourn
G. Cordova moved to adjourn at 8:39 p.m., seconded by R. Coyle. Unanimously ..
approved. MOTION CARRIED.

R(97.~
Derrik M. Kennedy
Executive Assistant to the First Selectman

Attachments:
• Letter to BOS from Tearice Peters
• Memo from Town Engineer regarding Release of Subdivision Surety Bond
• Memo from Senior Center Director regarding Exercise Instructor Contract
• Memo from Chief Financial Officer regarding AFLAC Reimbursement Services



Tearice Peters
EMAIL: peters.tearice@att.net
860-537-6346

Enter into Public Record

Dear First Selectman Gregg Shuster
And Members of the Board of Selectmen,

December 16, 2010

I want to first start out by saying thank you to all of you for allowing me the time to interview for
the open seat on the Board ofAssessment Appeals. However, after leaving the Dec. 2nd BOS
meeting, I was able to reflect back on the comment Selectman Stan Sabey made referring to a
possible "ethical conflict" on my serving on the Board and participating in the C.C.C., Inc.non
profit group and felt a chuification was needed. I find it interesting that this would be a
consideration now, considering I was elected to and had already served a full term on the BOAA. In
addition, according to the State BOAA guidelines, one of the only qualifications required of a
serving BOAA member is that they are usually long time residents of the Town. Because of the
time Board members are in a town, they interact with and get to know many citizens that live there.
You get to know your neighbors, relatives, businesses, your children's' friends' families, etc... ; you
are an interactive part.icipating member of the community. These interactions may be in a positive
light or not. However, knowing that this is an outcome ofbeing a long time citizen of the town, you
have to be willing to excuse yourself when a certain interaction may come before the Board in an
appeal process. In addition, we were informed during the training course that you may not always
need to excuse yourself, that you should be able to separate any ties or connections with the
individual or situation, which I have done so without hesitation. That is why I am a bit puzzled by
the current question of an ethical conflict.

As a Member on the Board ofAssessment Appeals, you do not assess nor appraise property. You
are a reviewing 'Jury". A property owner with an appeal comes before the board; brings at least 3
comparab1es with them to support their view. The problem I have with what Mr. Sobey is referring
to as an "ethical" issue, I find unfounded. My function in the non-profit corp. has nothing to do with
adjusting citizens' property values. CCC, Inc.'s mission is to make Colchester a safe, happy and
friendly area of COllilecticut for all its inhabitants. I don't see as an example: how fighting or
assisting the town in industrial regulations has any bearing on my serving on the Board of
Assessment Appeals. There wasn't an issue in the past and nothing has changed to warrant such a
comment/opinion now.

My work ethic and integrity speaks for its self I pride myself on always up holding all regulations. I
have served on the Board in the past with an open, unbiased view, treating all who came before the
board with the up most respect and honesty looking at their request. I asked questions and made
request to other various TownDepartments for clarifications. Even under preset pressure to vote a
certain way from the chairman of the BOAA, at that time Mr. Anderson, I felt it was my duty to
seek out the correct facts and ask questions, so that I could make the best-informed, unbiased
decision possible in fairness to the property owners of this town.

I would hope you all would share in the acknowledgement that my experience and viewpoint that
there should be a fair and unbiased Board serving the citizens of Colchester is what the BOAA
needs. I appreciate your time and understanding. If any of you have additional questions or
concerns, you can reach me either by phone: 860-537-6346 or email: peters.tearice@att.net.

Sincerely,
Tearice Peters



December 7, 2010

Code Administration
Building Official

Fire Marshal
Wetlands Enforcement

Planning and Zoning
Planning Director

Zoning Enforcement
Town Engineer

To:
From:
Re:

Colchester Board of Selectmen /. i/o _7 - _ 9

Salvatore A. Tassone P.E. - Town Engineer/··e£)\~
Brookstone Estates Subdivision, Red Schoolhouse Road and Brookstone
Drive, Colchester CT. OwnerlDeveloper - Brookstone LLC - Mario
Mllcciacciaro.

The owner of the referenced Subdivision has requested the release of his 10% Road
Maintenance Bond. As ofDecember 3,2010, the road maintenance bond has been in
place for the required 1 year period. Based on a site inspection conducted on
December 6, 2010, It appears that all of the public improvements associated with the
referenced subdivision are in good condition. It is therefore recommended that the
existing Subdivision Surety Bond (Bond #K07740359 provided by Westchester Fire
Insurance Company) in the amount of$60,982.00, be released as requested.

Recommended Motion:

Motion that the Board ofSelectmen release the remaining Brookstone Estates
Subdivision Surety Bond (Westchester Fire Insurance Company Bond#K07740359)
in the amount of$60,982.00

127 NORWICH AVENUE .:. COLCHESTER, CT 06415 .:. (860) 537-7280 .:. FAX (860) 537-7287



Colchester Senior Center
BOS Request for Approval

To: Board of Selectmen

From: Patti White, Director

Re: Renewal of Exercise Instructor Contract

Date: 12/1/10

This letter of agreement/contract is a renewal ofthe existing contract with an exercise
instructor at the senior center. The language has remained the same. Only the dates have
been changed.

Action Recommended:

That the Colchester Board of Selectmen authorize Gregg Schuster, First Selectman, to
sign the renewal contract with Sue Roos, senior center exercise instructor, beginning
January 1,2011 and ending December 31,2011.



N. Maggie Cosgrove
Chief Financial Officer
Finance Department

Date: December 9, 2010

To: Board of Selectmen

From: N. Maggie Cosgrove, CFO k JIk.'t!!!ts6
Subject: Aflac Wingspan Benefit Services - Reimbursement Services
Agreement

Background

Aflac is the plan service provider for the Town of Colchester Flexible
Spending Account (FSA). The Finance Department has successfully
negotiated a zero increase in the fees for the renewal plan year date of
1/1/2011 of $3.00 per participant with a monthly minimum fee of $25.00.
Aflac had initially proposed a fee increase to $5.00 per participant with a
monthly minimum fee of $50.00 for the Town plan.

The plan provider services involve the use or disclosure of information which
meets the statutory definition of Protected Health Information. Under the
Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information, as
amended by Subtitle D of the Health Information Technology for Economic
and Clinical Health Act, the Town and the plan provider must enter into a
written business associate agreement with respect to the use and disclosure
of Protected Health Information - the Business Associate Agreement is
included as Exhibit A of the Reimbursement Services Agreement.

Recommendation

Approval of Reimbursement Services Agreement and authorization for First
Selectman to sign all necessary documents.

127 Norwich Avenue, Colchester, CT 06415 Phone 860·537·7229 Fax 860·537·7231



First SelectmanGregg Schuster

Public Hearing
Thursday, December 16, 2010

Colchester Town Hall

Meeting Room 1 -7:00pm

.-
(:.

-~' ".~~.'.

"',,-=
C)

= c:J
::::J r-'!-;';

(y .A}

C; rT"1..
(;,

-....J .- ) iT
j --<v f ·1 ill-- ::DO

:-0
CJ

cJI •.-4

1',,)

MEMBERS PRESENT: First Selectman Gregg Schuster, Selectman Stan Soby, Selectman Greg
Cordova, and Selectman Rosemary Coyle.
MEMBERS ABSENT: Selectman James Ford
OTHERS PRESENT: Derrik Kennedy, Dave Anderson, Wendy Mis, Rob Tarlov, David Dander,
AI Hemingway, Katy Nally, Ryan Blessing, and members of the pUblic.

1. Call to Order
First Selectman G. Schuster called the Public Hearing to order at 7:00 p.m.

2. Discussion on Changes to the Inland Wetlands Fee Schedule Ordinance
No questions or discussion from those present.

3. Adjourn
R. Coyle moved to adjourn at 7:01 p.m., seconded by S. Soby. Unanimously approved.
MOTION CARRIED.

127 NORWICH AVENUE, COLCHESTER, CT 06415 • (860) 537-7220 • FAX (860) 537-0547





Board of Selectmen Special Meeting Minutes
Wednesday, December 22, 2010
Colchester Town Hall-7:00PM

·.-.:0:: • -~'l

.:).-....1
".- fT1

~:~~ ~.~

MEMBERS PRESENT: First Selectman Gregg Schuster, Selectman Rosemary Coyle, Selectman Stan Soby,
Selectman Greg Cordova, and Selectman James Ford (via phone)
MEMBERS ABSENT:
OTHERS PRESENT: Candace Barnes, David Gesiak

1. Call to Order
First Selectman G. Schuster called the special meeting of the Board of Selectmen to
order at 7:00 p.m.

2. Boards and Commissions - Interviews and/or Possible Appointments and
Resignations

a. Planning & Zoning Commission. Member David Gesiak to be re-appointed
for a three-year term to the Planning & Zoning Commission to expire
12/31/2013. David Gesiak to be interviewed.
David Gesiak was interview. R. Coyle moved to appoint David Gesiak to a new
three-year term to the Planning & Zoning Commission set to expire on
12/31/2013, seconded by G. Cordova. Unanimously approved. MOTION
CARRIED.

b. Police Commission. Discussion and Possible Appointment of Frank .
Jackter, John W. Carroll IV, Robert L. Kanaitis, Patrick Mickens, or Steve
Petty to the Police Commission.

Open Terms to Expire On:
i. 11101/12
ii. 11/01/11

R. Coyle moved to appoint Patrick Mickens to the Police Commission for a term
to expire 11/01/12, seconded by J. Ford. R. Coyle and J. Ford voted in favor. S.
Soby and G. Cordova voted against. First Selectman Schuster voted against.
MOTION FAILED.

S. Soby moved to appoint Frank Jackter to the Police Commission for a term to
expire 11/01/12, seconded by G. Cordova. S. Soby and G. Cordova voted in
favor. J. Ford and R. Coyle voted against. First Selectman Schuster voted in
favor. MOTION CARRIED.

S. Soby moved to appoint Steve Petty to the Police Commission for a term to
expire 11/01/11, seconded by G. Cordova. J. Ford abstained. All others voted in
favor. MOTION CARRIED.

127 NORWICH AVENUE, COLCHESTER, CT 06415 • (860) 537-7220 • FAX (860) 537-0547



Board of Selectmen Special Meeting Agenda - Wednesday, December 22, 2010
Colchester Town Hall - 7:00 p.m.
Page 2 of2

3. Adjourn
S. Soby moved to adjourn at 7:05 p.m., seconded by G. Cordova. Unanimously
approved. MOTION CARRIED.

Respectfully submitted,

Candace Barnes
Meeting Clerk



Town of Colchester

General Fund

Budget Transfer/Additional Appropriation

Departmentl Fire

Reason for To provide alpha - numeric pagers to the cadets of the Fire Company. This will provide
Request necessary immediate communication requesting response for service from them.

Reason for There are funds for cadet turnout gear that have been approved to be used for emergency
Available communication devices. The turn out gear acquired last year was received late in the year
Funds: and therefore supply is sufficient for this year.

From: Account Number Account Name

[12202-42323 Iprotective clothing 1,190

Amount

To:
112202-42346 uipment supplies

IDee 1,2010 Wad-{],-.(2
Date Requested Department Director or Supervisor· Signature

Print Name

1,;;jlb/ lO

Date Reviewed

Date Approved

Date Approved

Board of Selectmen Clerk

Board of Finance Clerk





Code Administration
Building Official

Fire Marshal
Wetlands Enforcement

Planning and Zoning
Planning Director

Zoning Enforcement
Town Engineer

Memorandum

To: Board of Selectmen

From: Jay Gigliotti, Wetlands Enforcement Officer ;;fC;;
Subj: Fee schedule

Date: 10.19.10

RE Update Inland Wetland and Watercourse Fee Schedule

On Wednesday June 9th, 2010, The Colchester Conservation Commission voted to send a
revised fee schedule to the Board of Selectman for approval.

The fee schedule was revised to correct inconsistencies with the existing schedule and.
The new proposed fees have been established by comparison to other towns similar in
size, population and potential development. Amount of time required to review
applications was also considered.

Attached is the fee proposed fee schedule. Any changes are highlighted in Red.

Recommended Motion: Motion to approved Colchester's revised Inland Wetland
and Watercourse Fee schedule as shown on the attached
and proposed by The Colchester Conservation
Commission.

127 NORWICH AVENUE .:. COLCHESTER, CT 06415 .:. (860) 537-7280 .:. FAX (860) 537-7287



FEE STRUCTURE FOR
INLAND WETLAND AND WATERCOURSE APPLICATIONS

A. Permitted as of Right and Non-regulated uses: $75 ifreview needed fee.

B. Renew, Transfer or Amend Permit: $100

C. Base Administrative fee: $200

D. Wetland Agent Approval: $50.

E. Public Hearing Fee: $200

F. Non-significant activity: $100.

G. Significant activity: $200 plus $1 for each 1000 square feet ofwetlands or fraction
thereof on the application property and $10 for each 1,000 square feet of wetlands or fraction
thereof disturbed or created.

H. Subdivision with no municipal improvements: $50.00 ($200 if significant) plus $55
per lot and $10 for each 1,000 square feet of wetlands or fraction thereof disturbed or
created.

1. Subdivision with municipal improvements: $50.00 ($200 if significant) plus$65 per
lot, $1 for each 1000 square feet ofwetlands or fraction thereof on the application property
and $10 for each 1,000 square feet ofwetlands or fraction thereof disturbed or created, to a
maximum $2000

1. Commercial Development: $400 plus $50.00 ($200 if significant) plus $1 tor
each 1000 square feet of wetlands or fraction thereof on the application property and $10
tor each 1,000 square feet of wetlands or fraction thereof disturbed or created

K. Petitions for Changes in Regulations or the Wetlands Map: $155.00

9. A State fee of$60.00 must be added to all ofthe above fees pursuant CGS 22a-27j.

10. In addition to the above, for permitted construction projects which require environmental
site monitoring, the cost of such monitoring shall be at the expense ofthe applicant.

Please speak with the Wetlands Enforcement Officer to determine the fee for any

application to the Conservation Commission.
The full text of the Ordinance is available from the Wetlands Enforcement Officer or in the Town Clerk's office



To: Board of Selectmen

From: Patti White, Senior Services Director

Re: Extension of Contract with Consultant to work with Senior Center Study Group

Date: 1/3/11

This is a request for the Board of Selectmen to approve a three month extension of the existing
contract (which expired on 12/31/10) with the consultant working with the Senior Center Study
Group and to empower the First Selectman to sign/execute said contract. The total compensation
of the extended contract shall not exceed the initial $2,200.00 approved by the BOS (No
additional funds will be allocated).

Recommended Actions:

Motion to approve the three month extension (through March 31, 2011) of the contract with
Dawn Homer-Bouthiette and authorize the First Selectman to sign and execute the contract.





INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into as of the 1st day of September, 2010, by and between
the Colchester Senior Center ("the Agency"), and Dawn Homer-Bouthiette, ("the
Contractor") and shall remain in full effect until December 31, 2010.

1. Independent Contractor. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the
Agency hereby engages the Contractor as an independent contractor to perform the
services set forth herein, and the Contractor hereby accepts such engagement.

2. Duties, Term, and Compensation. The Contractor's duties, term of engagement,
compensation and provisions for payment thereof shall be as set forth in and
attached as Exhibit A. Exhibit A may be amended in writing and hereby incorporated
by reference.

3. Expenses. During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall bill and the
Agency shall reimburse for all reasonable and pre-approved out-of-pocket expenses
which are incurred in connection with the performance of the duties hereunder and in
accordance with the tasks described in Exhibit A.

4. Written Reports and Other Communications. The Agency may request that project
plans, progress reports and a final report be provided by the Consultant on a monthly
basis. Any and all reports shall meet the timeframe, format, content and data
requirements as reasonably requested by the Agency.

5. Confidentiality. The Contractor acknowledges that during the engagement she will
have access to and become acquainted with various processes, information, records
and specifications regarding the Agency in connection with the operation of its
business including, without limitation, the Agency's business and product processes,
methods, customer lists, accounts and procedures. The Contractor agrees that she
will not disclose any of the aforesaid, directly or indirectly, or use any of them in any
manner, either during the term of this Agreement or at any time thereafter, except as
required in the course of this engagement with the Agency. All files, records,
documents, blueprints, specifications, information, letters, notes, media lists, original
artwork/creative, notebooks, and similar items relating to the business of the Agency,
whether prepared by the Contractor or otherwise coming into her possession, shall
remain the exclusive property of the Agency. The Contractor shall not retain any
copies of the foregoing without the Agency's prior written permission. Upon the
expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, or whenever requested by the
Agency, the Contractor shall immediately deliver to the Agency all such files,
records, documents, specifications, information, and other items in her possession or
under her control.

6. Conflicts of Interest. The Contractor represents that she is free to enter into this
Agreement and that this engagement does not violate the terms of any agreement
between the Contractor and any third party. During the term of this agreement, the
Contractor shall devote as much of her productive time, energy and abilities to the
performance of her duties hereunder as is necessary to perform the required duties



in a timely and productive manner. The Contractor is expressly free to perform
services for other parties while performing services for the Agency.

7. Termination. The Agency may terminate this Agreement at any time by ten (10)
working days' written notice to the Contractor.

8. Independent Contractor. This Agreement shall not render the Contractor an
employee, partner, agent of, the Agency for any purpose. The Contractor is and will
remain an independent contractor in her relationship to the Agency. The Agency
shall not be responsible for withholding taxes with respect to the Contractor's
compensation hereunder. The Contractor shall have no claim against the Agency
hereunder or otherwise for vacation pay, sick leave, retirement benefits, social
security, worker's compensation, health or disability benefits, unemployment
insurance benefits, or employee benefits of any kind.

9. Assignment. The Contractor shall not assign any of her rights under this Agreement,
or delegate the performance of any of her duties hereunder, without the prior written
consent of the Agency.

10. Notices. Any and all notices, demands, or other communications required or desired
to be given hereunder by any party shall be in writing and shall be validly given or
made to another party if personally served, or if deposited in the United States mail,
certified or registered, postage prepaid, return receipt requested. If such notice or
demand is served personally, notice shall be deemed constructively made at the time
of such personal service. If such notice, demand or other communication is given by
mail, such notice shall be conclusively deemed given five days after deposit thereof
in the United States mail addressed to the party to whom such notice, demand or
other communication is to be given as follows:

If to the Contractor: Dawn L. Homer-Bouthiette
216 Newgate Road
East Granby, CT 06026

If to the Agency: Gregg Schuster, First Selectmen
Town of Colchester
127 Norwich Avenue
Colchester, CT 06415

860-653-9489

860- 537-7220

Any party hereto may change its address for purposes of this paragraph by written
notice given in the manner provided above.

11. Modification or Amendment. No amendment, change or modification of this
Agreement shall be valid unless in writing signed by the parties hereto.

12. Entire Understanding. This document and any exhibit attached constitute the entire
understanding and agreement of the parties, and any and all prior agreements,
understandings, and representations are hereby terminated and canceled in their
entirety and are of no further force and effect.

2



13. Unenforceability of Provisions. If any provision of this Agreement, or any portion
thereof, is held to be invalid and unenforceable, then the remainder of this
Agreement shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of the day
and year first written above. The parties hereto agree that facsimile signatures shall be
as effective as if originals.

For The Agency:

By: _
Gregg Schuster, First Selectmen

Date: _

For the Contractor:

By: _
Dawn Homer-Bouthiette, Contractor

Date: _

3



EXHIBIT A

DUTIES, TERM, AND COMPENSATION

Project: Colchester Senior Center Study Group
Term: September 1, 2010 - December 31,2010

Duties: The duties assigned and accepted during the term of this Agreement shall
be consistent with the mission of the Colchester Senior Center, the charge of the
Senior Center Study Committee and may include but need not be limited to:

• Project-related research;
• Community survey design and analysis;
• Technical assistance and consultation services;
• Meeting planning, facilitation and follow-up; and
• Other reasonable duties requested within the Consultant's scope of

expertise.

Compensation: Compensation shall be rendered at an hourly rate of $50.00 for an
average of eleven (11) hours per month billable monthly, not to exceed a
maximum of $2,200 during the term of this Agreement.

Project Schedule & Deliverables

September 2010
• Finish research
• Finalize Project work plan
• Finalize community survey tools & timeline

October, 2010
• Project Status Update
• Complete SWOT Analysis

November, 2010
• Project Status Update
• Review information from SWOT
• Review preliminary survey results
• Negotiate and vote on recommendations

December, 2010
• Finalize Committee Report

4



Colchester
Health Department

PublicHealth
Prevent. Promote. Protect.

DATE:

TO:

FROM:

RE:

MEMORANDUM

December 16,2010

Gregg Schuster

Wendy MiS\,~
Public Health Preparedness contract

I have received the contract and personal service agreement from the Connecticut Department of Public
Health for continuation of the Public Health Preparedness grant. The total grant award for this contract
year (August 10,2010 through August 9, 2011) is $36,478.00.

As has been necessary in the past for this type of funding, in order for me to complete the paperwork
required by the CT Department of Public Health, it is necessary for the Board of Selectmen to pass a
resolution allowing the First Selectman the authority to sign the contract. Once this is done, the contract
paperwork can be signed, dated, and submitted. Nancy Bray, as the Town Clerk, will certify the First
Selectman's signature after it has been signed and dated. Please schedule this item on the BoS agenda at
the earliest opportunity so that the package can be submitted as soon as possible. If there are any
questions, please contact me.

Please consider a motion by the Board of Selectmen to pass a resolution allowing the First
Selectman the authority to sign the contract and grant related paperwork as required for the 2011
Prevention Health Block Grant.

127 Norwich Avenue· Colchester, CT 06415· (860) 537-7214· FAX (860) 537-7287· www.colchesterct.gov





VENDOR INVOICE FOR GOODS OR SERVICES
RENDERED TO THE STATE OF CONNECTICUT
CO-17 Rev 7/03
VENDOR: Please complete this form and send it to the

DEPARTMENT BILLING ADDRESS SHOWN ON PURCHASE ORDER

STATE OF CONNECTICUT
OFFICE OF THE STATE COMPTROLLER

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE DIVISION

(1) Business Unit Name (2) Business Unit Number (3) Invoice Number I(4) Invoice Amount
$18,239

(5) Document Date (6) Invoice Date (7) Accounting Date I (8) Rpt. Type I (9) . VENDOR FEIN/SSN - SUFFIX
T 000·00·0028

VENDOR/PAYEE: FIELDS 9,1014 and 18 ARE MANDATORY FOR PAYMENT

Colchester State: CT 06415

(10)

Payee: Town of Colchester
Address: 127 Norwich Avenue
Address:
City:

(11) Voucher Number

(12)
Voucher Date:

10DPH1069HHL #20111069(13) VENDOR BILLING COMMENTS: og - -
(14) (15) (16) (17) (18)

Give a full description of Qoods or services Quantity Units Unit Price Amount

Contract Log # 2011-1069
Services in connection with: Public Health Emergency Preparedness

In accordance with contract date: 08/10/2010 through 08/09/2011. $18,239

Per Contract Terms...

I certify that the above is a valid claim and has not been paid by the
State of Connecticut.

XX
(Contractor) Signature of Authorized Person

(Print or Type Name & Title)

BUSINESS UNIT USE

(19) (23) (24) (25) (26) (27) (28) (29) (30)
Amount FUND Deoartment SID Program Account Project Budaet Ref CFDA#

$18,239 12060 DPH48557 22333 42008 55050 DPH22333PHP 2011 93.069

(31) DEPARTMENT NAME AND ADDRESS: (32) PO NO. (35) COMMODITIES RECEIVED or SERVICES RENDERED- Signature

STATE OF CONNECTICUT
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH (DPH AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE)

410 CAPITOL AVENUE, MS# 13 GCT (34) PO BUS UNIT (36) Receiving Report No. (37) Date of Receipt
PO BOX 340308
HARTFORD, CT. 06134-0308

SHIPPING INFORMATION
(38) Date shipped (39) From City/State (40) Via Carrier (41) F.O.B.



VENDOR INVOICE FOR GOODS OR SERVICES
RENDERED TO THE STATE OF CONNECTICUT
CO-17 Rev 7/03
VENDOR: Please complete this form and send it to the

DEPARTMENT BILLING ADDRESS SHOWN ON PURCHASE ORDER
(1) Business Unit Name (2) Business Unit Number (3) Invoice Number

STATE OF CONNECTICUT
OFFICE OF THE STATE COMPTROLLER

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE DIVISION

I
(4) Invoice Amount
$18,239

(5) Document Date (6) Invoice Date (7) Accounting Date I (8) Rpt. Type I (9) . VENDOR FEIN/SSN - SUFFIX
T 000-00-0028

VENDOR/PAYEE: FIELDS 9,1014 and 18 ARE MANDATORY FOR PAYMENT

Colchester State: CT 06415

(10)

Payee: Town of Colchester
Address: 127 Norwich Avenue
Address:
City:

VENDOR BILLING COMMENTS: #2011-1069

(11) Voucher Number

(12)
Voucher Date:

..."'.•.

(14) (15) (16) (17) (18)
Give a full description of ~oods or services Quantity Units Unit Price Amount

Contract Log # 2011-1069
Services in connection with: Public Health Emergency Preparedness

In accordance with contract date: 08/10/2010 through 08/09/2011. $18,239

Per Contract Terms...

I certify that the above is a valid claim and has not been paid by the
State of Connecticut.

XX
(Contractor) Signature of Authorized Person

(Print or Type Name & Title)

BUSINESS UNIT USE ONLY

(19) (23) (24) (25) (26) (27) (28) (29) (30)
Amount FUND Department SID Prooram Account Proiect BudQet Ref CFDA#

$18,239 12060 DPH48557 22350 42008 55050 DPH22350PHP 2011 93.069

(31) DEPARTMENT NAME AND ADDRESS: (32) PO NO. (35) COMMODITIES RECEIVED or SERVICES RENDERED- Signature

STATE OF CONNECTICUT
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH (DPH AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE)

410 CAPITOL AVENUE, MS# 13 GCT (33) PO BUS UNIT (36) Receiving Report No. (37) Date of Receipt
PO BOX 340308
HARTFORD, CT. 06134-0308

SHIPPING INFORMATION
(38) Date shipped (39) From City/State (40) Via Carrier (41) F.O.B.



PERSONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT
CO-802A REV.212000 (electronic version)

PRINT OR TYPE
1. The State Agency And The Contractor As Listed Below Hereby Enter Into An Agreement Subject to

the terms and conditions stated herein and/or Attached hereto and Subject to the Provisions of
Section 4-98 of the Connecticut General Statutes as Applicable

STATE OF CONNECTICUT
OFFICE OF THE STATE COMPTROLLER

CENTRAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE DIVISION

DPH Log # 2011-1069
2. Acceptance of this Contract implies Conformance with Terms and Conditions, as attached hereto

I (1)
(2) Identification No

and incorporated by reference. (8]Original 0 Amendment P.S.
(3) Contractor Name (4) Are you Presently a

Town of Colchester State Employee
DYES [gJ NO

CONTRACTOR Address Contractor FEIN/SSN

127 Norwich Avenue, Colchester, CT 06415 000-00-0028

(5) Agency Name And Address (6) AGENCY NO.
STATE State of Connecticut, Department of Public Health

AGENCY
MS#13 GCT, 410 Capitol Ave., PO Box 340308, Hartford, CT 06134-0308 48500

CONTRACT (7) DATE (FROM) I THROUGH (TO) I (8) INDICATE
PERIOD 08/10/10 08/09/11 o Master Agreement 0 Contract Award No. [gJ Neither

CANCELLATION THIS AGREEMENT SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT FOR THE ENTIRE TERM OF THE I(9) Required No. of
CONTRACT PERIOD STATED ABOVE UNLESS CANCELLED BY THE STATE AGENCY, BY GIVING THE days written

CLAUSE CONTRACTOR VVRITIEN NOTICE OF SUCH INTENTION (REQUIRED DAYS NOTICE SPECIFIED AT RIGHT.) notice: 30

COMPLETE
(10) CONTRACTOR AGREES TO: (Include special provisions - Attach additional blank sheets if necessary.)

DESCRIPTION A. Town of Colchester, hereinafter "the Contractor", shall provide services to the Department of Public
OF SERVICE Health, hereinafter "the Department", as described in this Agreement, on page 2 as follows: (Continued on Page

1bl

COST AND
(11) PAYMENT TO BE MADE UNDER THE FOLLOWING SCHEDULE UPON RECEIPT OF PROPERLY EXECUTED AND APPROVED INVOICES.

SCHEDULE OF Payment shall be made according to the schedule in Section F. of this Contract.
PAYMENTS

The total amount of this Contract shall not exceed $36,478.00.
(12) Act CD I(13) Doc Typ (14) Comm Typ 1(15) LSE Typ (16) Org Agcy I(17) Doc No. 1(18) Commit Agency (19) Commit Num I(20) FEIN/SSN

48500 48500 000·00·0028
(21) COMMITTED AMOUNT (22) OBLIGATED AMOUNT (23) CONTRACT PERIOD ([(omlto)

$ $36,478 811012010 181912011
REQUIRED OPT

(24) Amount (25) FUND (26) Department (27) SID (28) Prooram (29) Account (30) Proiect I (31) BudQet Ref (32) CFDA

$36,478.00 12060 DPH48557 22333 42008 55050 DPH22333PHP2011 93.069

An Individual entering into a Personal Service Agreement with the State of Connecticut is contracting under a "work-for-hire" arrangement. As such, the individual is
an independent contractor, and does not satisfy the characteristics of an employee under the common law rules for determining the employer/employee relationship
of Internal Revenue Code section 3121(d) (2). Individuals performing services as independent contractors are not employees of the State of Connecticut and are
responsible themselves for payment of all State and local income taxes, federal income taxes and Federal Insurance Contribution Act (FICA) taxes.

ACCEPTANCES AND APPROVALS (33) STATUTORY AUTHORITY: 4-8, 19a-2a
The Contractor herein IS NOT a Business Associate under HIPAA:

(34) CONTRACTOR (OWNER OR AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE) TITLE DATE

First Selectman
(35) AGENCY (AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL) TITLE DATE

Norma D. Gyle, R.N., Ph.D Deputv Commissioner
(36) OFFICE OF POLICY & MGMT.lDEPT. OF ADMIN. SERVo TITLE DATE

(37) ATTORNEY GENERAL (APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCy) DATE

Page 1a of 29



WORKFORCE ANALYSIS
Contractor Name: Town of Colchester I Total Number of CT employees: OS
Address:127 Norwich Avenue, Colchester, CT 06415 I Full Time: 9ilf Part Time: Z(

Complete the foliowinQ Workforce Analysis for employees on Connecticut worksites who are:
White Black Hispanic Asian or American Indian People with

Job Overall (not of Hispanic (not of Hispanic Pacific Islander Or Disabilities
Categories Totals Ori in) Origin) Alaskan Native

(sum of all Male female male female male female male female male female male female
cols. male &

female)
Officials &

I~ ) I IManaQers

Professionals 19 L{ IS

Technicians 9 ~ 0
Office &

20 I ,C(
Clerical
Craft Workers

Lf L{(skilled) 0
Operatives

I
., I(() \(semi-skilled)

Laborers
0 0 0(unskilled)

Service
)~ IS 3Workers

Totals Above J \) S We:> LfS
Totals 1year

/05 '00 LISAQO
FORMAL ON-THE-JOB TRAINEES (Enter fiQures for the same cateQories as are shown above)
Apprentices 0 0 D
Trainees 0 () 0

EMPLOYMENT FIGURES WERE OBTAINED FROM: o Visual Check £5J Employment Records D Other

1. Have you successfully implemented an Affirmative Action Plan? ;gr YES D NO
Date of implementation: 3)2 [PJ0{3 If the answer is "No", explain.

1. a) Do you promise to develop and implement asuccessful Affirmative Action? DYES D NO 0l Not Applicable Explanation:

2. Have you successfully developed a~renticeshiP program complying with Sec. 46a-68-1 to 46a-68-17 of the Connecticut Department of Labor Regulations,
inclusive: DYES D NO Not Applicable Explanation:

3. According to EEO-1 data, is the composition of your work force at or near parity when compared with the racial and sexual composition of the work force in the
relevant labor market area? )\1' YES D NO
Explanation:

4. If you plan to subcontract, will you set aside a portion of the contract for legitimate minority business enterprises? p YES D NO Explanation:

Contractor's AuthOrized Signature Date



N. Maggie Cosgrove
Chief Financial Officer
Finance Department

Date: January 4, 2011

To: Board of Selectmen

From: N. Maggie Cosgrove, CFO~YlA-t~---..

Subject: Police Pension Plan Restatement

Shipman & Goodwin has submitted the proposed restatement of the Town of
Colchester Police Department Pension Plan. The restatement incorporates
Amendments No.1 (collectively bargained provision permitting the purchase
of prior service) and No.2 (a federally required amendment due to changes in
the regulations under Internal Revenue Code Section 415), and a series of
other changes required under the Internal Revenue Code over the past
several years. Each of the changes is required under the Internal Revenue
Code and/or the regulations thereunder. It should be noted that none of the
changes to the Plan would have a negative impact on the future pension
benefits of the employees covered under the Plan.

The deadline for execution of the restatement of the Police Pension Plan is
January 31,2011.

Recommendation

Approval of resolution to adopt the Town of Colchester Police Department
Pension Plan as amended and restated to comply with Federal law and
regulations effective July 1, 2010 (first date of plan year during which the
plan is amended and restated).

127 Norwich Avenue, Colchester, CT 06415 Phone 860-537-7229 Fax 860-537-7231



 



1702988vl

The Town of Colchester Police Department

Pension Plan

Effective July 1, 2010



THE TOWN OF COLCHESTER POLICE DEPARTMENT

PENSION PLAN

ARTICLE PAGE

1. DEFINITIONS............ 1

2. ELIGIBILITY 6

3. FUNDING POLICY; CONTRIBUTIONS.............................................. 7

4. RETIREMENT DATES 8

5. CALCULATION OF RETIREMENT BENEFIT 9

6. FORMS OF PAYMENT OF RETIREMENT BENEFIT........................ 10

7. RETIREMENT BENEFIT FOR TERMINATED
VESTED PARTICIPANTS..................................................................... 13

8. DEATH BENEFITS 15

9. ADMINISTRATION............................................................................... 16

10. AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION OF PLAN................................... 19

11. ALLOCATION OF ASSETS.................................................................. 20

12. MERGER OR CONSOLIDATION OF PLANS..................................... 21

13. FUND....................................................................................................... 22

14. LIMITATION ON BENEFITS 23

15. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 24

1702988vl



PREAMBLE

This plan contains provisions set forth in the July I, 2003 - June 30, 2007

Collective Bargaining Agreement between the Town of Colchester and Colchester Police

Union, Local 2693T, Council #15, AFSCME, AFL-CIO. This document is intended to

constitute a qualified governmental pension plan under Internal Revenue Code Section

401(a).

1702988vl



ARTICLE 1

DEFINITIONS

Section 1.01 Accrued Benefit. A Participant's Accrued Benefit, at any given point in

time, shall be as set forth in Section 5.01.

Section 1.02 Actuarial Equivalent. A benefit of equivalent value to a life annuity

benefit detennined using the U.P. 1994 mortality table and 6% interest.

Section 1.03 Bargaining Agreement. The collective bargaining agreement in effect

from time to time between the Bargaining Unit and the Town.

Section 1.04 Bargaining Unit. Colchester Police Union, Local 2693T, Council #15,

AFSCME, AFL-CIO.

Section 1.05 Beneficiary. Any person or persons designated by the Participant, or

otherwise entitled, to receive any benefit hereunder not received by the Participant or the

Participant's Surviving Spouse.

Section 1.06 Board. The Board of Selectmen.

Section 1.07 Town. The Town of Colchester.

Section 1.08 Compensation. The Employee's weekly base salary only, excluding

(without limitation) payments for extra duty, overtime, longevity or shift premiums.

Compensation shall be detennined as if no elective salary reduction has been made pursuant to

Sections 125 (including amounts not available to a Participant in cash in lieu of group health

1702988vl



coverage because the Participant is unable to certify that he or she has other health coverage) and

457(b) ofthe Code.

The annual compensation of each Pmiicipant taken into account in determining benefit

accruals shall not exceed $200,000. Annual compensation means compensation during the plan

year or such other consecutive l2-month period over which compensation is otherwise

detennined under the plan (the "determination period"). The $200,000 limit on annual

compensation shall be adjusted for cost-of-living increases in accordance with section

401(a)(17)(B) ofthe Code. The cost-of-living adjustment in effect for a calendar year applies to

annual compensation for the determination period that begins with or within such calendar year.

Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan to the contrary, Compensation shall not be

reduced by elective deferrals or by salary reduction amounts contributed to any cafeteria plan of

the Town under Sections 125 (including, effective for Plan Years beginning after December 31,

1997, deemed Section 125 amounts not available to a Participant in cash in lieu of group health

coverage because the Participant is unable to certify that he or she has other health coverage) or

132(f) of the Code, or by any salary reduction amounts pursuant to Section 402(g)(3) of the

Code.

Section 1.09 Dependent. The term as defined in Section 152 of the Internal Revenue

Code of 1986, as amended from time to time.

Section 1.10 Effective Date. July 1, 2005.

- 2 -
1702988vI



Section 1.11 Employee. Any regular, full-time, investigatory and uniformed member

of the Town's Police Department who is duly sworn and vested with police powers, excluding

any such member excluded from the Bargaining Unit by the Municipal Employees Relations Act

("MERA").

Section 1.12 Employee Contributions. Contributions described in Section 3.03.

Section 1.13 Employer. The Town of Colchester and any governmental entity

succeeding to the rights or assuming the obligations hereunder in the manner described in Article

13 hereof.

Section 1.14 Final Average Salary. The Employee's Compensation for the highest three

Plan Years of active employment with the Employer divided by three (3).

Section 1.15 Fund. The funds held by the Funding Agent derived from contributions

made pursuant to the Plan, any property into which the same or any part thereofmay be

converted, and any increment thereto or income thereon.

Section 1.16 Funding Agent. The Board or any other trustee, insurance company or

other person, or any combination of the foregoing, which is maintaining custody ofthe funds

which de11ve from contributions made pursuant to the Plan and from which benefits shall be

paid, or any successor to such person.

Section 1.17 Funding Agreement. The agreement of trust and/or group annuity contract

pursuant to which the Funding Agent maintains custody of the Fund.

- 3 -
1702988vl



Section 1.18 Participant. An Employee participating in the Plan pursuant to Article 2

hereof.

Section 1.19 Plan. The Town of Colchester Police Department Pension Plan as set

forth herein and as hereafter amended.

Section 1.20 Plan Year. The 12 month period commencing July 1 and ending June 30.

Section 1.21 Qualified Domestic Relations Order (Order). A Qualified Domestic

Relations Order (Order) is a signed domestic relations order issued by a state court or agency that

creates, recognizes or assigns to an alternate payee(s) the right to receive all or a part of a

Participant's Plan benefit. An alternate payee is a Spouse, former Spouse, child or other

dependent who is treated as a Beneficiary under the Plan as a result ofthe Order.

Section 1.22 Spouse or Surviving Spouse. The spouse or surviving spouse of the

Participant under applicable state law, provided that a former spouse will be treated as the

Spouse or Surviving Spouse to the extent provided under a Qualified Domestic Relations Order.

Section 1.23 Year of Service. An annual period during which an Employee performs

active service with the Employer in accordance with the terms of the Bargaining Agreement.

(Any less than whole year periods of service shall be disregarded.) The first such annual period

shall begin on the date, on or after the Effective Date, on which an Employee commences

employment, and subsequent annual periods shall begin on anniversaries thereof; provided,

however, that solely for purposes of determining the Accrued Benefit pursuant to Section 5.01

the first such annual period for a Designated Prior Service Participant shall begin on the later of

(i) the date that is 6 years prior to the Effective Date, and (ii) the date on which such Designated

Prior Service Participant commenced employment. For purposes of this Section, "Designated

- 4-
1702988vl



Prior Service Participant" means an Employee who commenced active service with the

Employer in accordance with the terms of the Bargaining Agreement prior to the Effective Date

and who was continuously employed in such capacity from such employment commencement

date through the Effective Date.

To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Town shall permit a Designated Prior

Service Participant to purchase additional Years of Service for annual periods during which such

Participant performed active service with the Employer, in accordance with the terms ofthe

Bargaining Agreement, prior to July 1, 1999. The full cost ofthe purchase of such service, as

determined by, and in the sole discretion of, the Plan's Actuary using reasonable assumptions

with respect to relevant factors (including, but not limited to, Final Average Salary, retirement

date and interest rate), shall be paid by such Participant. The Town shall adopt reasonable

procedures for effectuating such purchases.

- 5 -
1702988vl



ARTICLE 2

ELIGIBILITY

Section 2.01 Eligibility to Participate. Each Employee shall become a Participant on

the date the Employee commences making Employee Contributions.

Section 2.02 Reemployment. If a Participant ceases to be an Employee and

subsequently becomes an Employee again, the Participant shall be eligible to participate in the

Plan as of the date on which the Participant again becomes an Employee and commences making

Employee Contributions.

- 6 -
1702988vl



ARTICLE 3

FUNDING POLICY; CONTRIBUTIONS

Section 3.01 The Fund. The Employer shall maintain a fund pursuant to one or more

Funding Agreements with one or more Funding Agents for the purpose of receiving,

administering, investing and reinvesting contributions made hereunder, and the proceeds thereof,

and for the purpose ofproviding for the payment of the benefits provided under the Plan.

Section 3.02 Contributions by the Employer. The Employer shall contribute to the cost

of the Plan by making periodic contributions to the Funding Agent on the basis of actuarial

calculations.

Section 3.03 Employee Contributions. Each Participant shall contribute to the Plan by

payroll deduction the amount of six percent (6%) of his or her Compensation for each week of

employment. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, in accordance with the resolution adopted

by the Board whereby the Employer shall pick up mandatory Employee Contributions to the

Plan, the Employer shall contribute to the Plan on behalf of each Participant the amount of six

percent (6%) ofthe Participant's Compensation. Such contributions are hereby designated as

Employee Contributions, but shall be treated as employer contributions pursuant to Section

414(h) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Section 3.04 Expenses ofAdministration. All expenses of the administration of the

Plan, as well as the expenses of administration of the Fund, shall be paid from the Fund unless

sooner paid by the Employer.

- 7 -
1702988vl



ARTICLE 4

RETIREMENT DATES

Section 4.01 Retirement Date. A Participant's Retirement Date shall be the Participant's

Nonnal Retirement Date (as defined in Section 4.02) or Late Retirement Date (as defined in

Section 4.03) whichever is applicable to the particular Participant.

Section 4.02 Nonnal Retirement Date. A Participant's Nonnal Retirement Date shall be

the first day of the month following the Participant's completion of twenty (20) Years of Service.

Section 4.03 Late Retirement Date. A Participant may remain in the service ofthe

Employer after the Patiicipant's Normal Retirement Date. In such event, the payment of a

retirement benefit to the Participant shall be postponed to a Late Retirement Date which shall be

the first day of the month after the Participant stops working for the Employer.

- 8 -
1702988vl



ARTICLES

CALCULATION OF RETIREMENT BENEFIT

Section 5.01 Accrued Benefit. The Accrued Benefit of a Participant, at any date of

detennination, shall be a monthly annuity commencing at the Participant's Nonna1 Retirement

Date in an amount equal to one-twelfth of two and one-halfpercent (2.5%) of such Participant's

Final Average Salary multiplied by the Participant's Years of Service; provided, however, that

the maximum annual benefit provided by the Plan shall not exceed sixty percent (60%) of a

Participant's Final Average Salary.

Section 5.02 Retirement Benefit. A Participant's Retirement Benefit shall be the

Participant's Nonnal Retirement Benefit (as calculated in Section 5.03), Late Retirement Benefit

(as calculated in Section 5.04), or Retirement Benefit for Tenninated Vested Participants (as

calculated in Section 7.04), whichever is applicable to the particular Participant.

Section 5.03 Calculation ofNonnal Retirement Benefit. A Participant's Nonnal

Retirement Benefit shall be the Participant's Accrued Benefit calculated as of the Participant's

Nonnal Retirement Date.

Section 5.04 Calculation of Late Retirement Benefit. A Participant who continues to be

an Employee of the Employer after the Participant's Nonnal Retirement Date shall receive a Late

Retirement Benefit, payable commencing on the Participant's Late Retirement Date, which shall

be the Participant's Accrued Benefit calculated in accordance with Section 5.01 as of the

Participant's Late Retirement Date, using Final Average Salary and Years of Service through the

Participant's Late Retirement Date.

- 9 -
1702988vl



ARTICLE 6

FORMS OF PAYMENT OF RETIREMENT BENEFIT

Section 6.01 Standard Form ofBenefit. The standard form ofRetirement Benefit for a

Participant shall be an amount equal to the amount determined in the applicable Section of

Article 5, payable as a monthly annuity commencing on said applicable Retirement Date and

payable on the first day of each month thereafter during the life of the Pmiicipant.

Section 6.02 Optional Forms of Benefit. A Participant may choose, subject to such

uniform terms and conditions as the Employer shall promulgate, to receive the Actuarial

Equivalent of the standard form ofbenefit that would otherwise have been payable, commencing

as of his or her applicable Retirement Date, in an optional fon11. Those options which will be

provided are the following:

Option 1 - Life Annuity - A monthly annuity for the life of the Participant commencing

on the Participant's Retirement Date.

Option 2 - Joint and Survivor Annuity Option - A monthly joint annuity for the life of the

Participant commencing on the Participant's Retirement Date, and payable monthly

thereafter, with a survivor annuity during the life of the Participant's Beneficiary of (a)

100%, (b) 75%, or (c) 50% of the joint annuity as the Participant shall have designated.

Option 3 - lOYear Certain and Life Option- A monthly annuity for the life of the

Participant, but guaranteed for a period of 10 years beginning on the Pmiicipant's

Retirement Date. If the Participant dies before the expiration of the 10-year period,

payments shall be payable to a Beneficiary for the balance of such 10 year period.

- 10-
1702988vl



No option shall become effective unless it meets a reasonable and good faith interpretation ofthe

minimum distribution requirements set forth under section 40I (a)(9) of the Code.

Section 6.03 Latest Date for Commencement ofPayments. Pursuant to section

401 (a)(9) of the Code, certain minimum required distributions shall be made from the Plan. The

following provisions are intended as a reasonable and good faith interpretation of section

401(a)(9) of the Code, consistent with the special rules for governmental plans and the final

regulations under section 401 (a)(9) of the Code.

(a) General Rules.

(i) The required beginning date of a Participant who attains age 70-Y2 shall be

the first day of April of the calendar year following the later ofthe

calendar year in which the Participant attains age 70-Y2 or terminates

employment;

(ii) A Participant shall commence his or her benefit distributions (in amounts

which at least satisfy the minimum required distributions of Section

401(a)(9) of the Code) no later than the required beginning date applicable

to such Participant.

(b) Overall General Rule. Payment ofbenefits shall commence not later than the

60th day after the close of the Plan Year in which the latest of the following

events have occurred:

(i) The Participant has attained the earlier of age 65 or the normal retirement

age;

(ii) The tenth anniversary of the year in which a Participant first became a

Participant has occurred; or

(iii) The Participant has terminated service with the Employer.

- 11 -
1702988vl



1702988vl

(C) Actuarial Adjustments. For a Participant whose required beginning date is the

April 1 of the calendar year following the calendar year ofthe Participant's

termination of employment, as determined by Section 401 (a)(9)(c)(i)(II), in the

event such Participant terminates employment in a calendar year after the

calendar year in which the Participant attains age 70-Y2, then such Participant's

retirement benefit shall be actuarially increased in accordance with Section

401 (a)(9)(c)(iii) and any applicable regulations or other IRS guidance issued

thereunder.

- 12 -



ARTICLE 7

RETIREMENT BENEFIT FOR

TERMINATED VESTED PARTICIPANTS

Section 7.01 Retirement Benefit for Terminated Vested Participants. A Participant who

terminates employment with the Employer prior to the Participant's Normal Retirement Date and

who is vested in the Participant's Accrued Benefit, is a Terminated Vested Participant and shall

receive a Retirement Benefit for Terminated Vested Participants as defined in Section 7.04.

Section 7.02 Vesting of Accrued Benefit Attributable to Employer Contribution. A

Participant shall be vested in the Participant's Accrued Benefit attributable to Employer

Contributions upon the occurrence of one of the following events:

(a) Upon completing ten (10) Years of Service; or

(b) Upon the termination of the Plan as provided in Article 10 hereof.

Until the occurrence ofone of such events, the Participant's vested percentage shall be 0%.

Section 7.03 Vested Percentage in Employee Contribution. A Participant shall always

be 100% vested in the Employee Contributions that a Participant makes to the Plan.

Section 7.04 Calculation ofRetirement Benefit for Terminated Vested Participants.

The Retirement Benefit for a Terminated Vested Participant shall be the Participant's Accrued

Benefit, calculated as of the date of the Participant's telmination of employment. Such Accrued

Benefit shall be determined under Plan provisions in effect on the Participant's date of

termination of employment.

- 13 -
1702988vl



Section 7.05 Time of Commencement and Manner of Payment ofBenefit for

Terminated Vested Participants. A Terminated Vested Participant may begin receiving the

Participant's Retirement Benefit on the first day of the month following his or her 55th birthday.

The form ofbenefit shall be determined in accordance with the rules set forth in Article 6.

Section 7.06 Return ofEmployee Contributions. A Participant who terminated without

a vested Accrued Benefit shall receive a refund of the Participant's Employee Contributions to

the Plan.

A Participant who terminated with a vested Accrued Benefit may elect to receive a refund

of the Participant's Employee Contributions to the Plan. Election of such a refund shall cause the

Participant to forfeit any remaining interest in the Participant's Accrued Benefit.

Section 7.07 Forfeitures. Any forfeitures on termination of service, or for other reason,

shall be used as soon as possible to reduce the amount of contributions by the Employer.

- 14-
1702988vI



ARTICLE 8

DEATH BENEFITS

Section 8.01 Retum ofEmployee Contributions To Beneficiary. Upon the death of a

Participant who has not commenced receiving his or her Retirement Benefit, a lump sum equal to

the total of the Participant's Employee Contributions, and any contributions by a Designated

Prior Service Participant as described in Section 1.23, shall be paid to the Beneficiary designated

by the Employee, or if no Beneficiary has been designated, then to the estate of the Participant.

Upon the death of a Participant who has commenced receiving his or her Retirement Benefit, the

existence and nature of any death benefit with respect to any annuity form ofbenefit shall

depend on the type of annuity elected, and no death benefit shall be payable pursuant to this

Article 8.

- 15 -
1702988vl



ARTICLE 9

ADMINISTRATION

Section 9.01 Responsibilities of the Plan Administrator. The Employer shall be the

Plan Administrator ofthe Plan, and shall have the following powers and responsibilities as Plan

Administrator of the Plan:

(a) To determine benefit rights;

(b) To adopt such method for the computation of periods of service and participation

as shall be permitted by law;

(c) To instruct the Funding Agent in the disbursement ofbenefits;

(d) To make such rules and regulations as it may deem necessary to carry out the

provisions of the Plan;

(e) To employ, where necessary or desirable in the administration of the Plan,

actuaries, attorneys, accountants and other individuals, who shall not be

fiduciaries merely as a result oftheir employment hereunder, and to delegate to

such individual such responsibilities as it shall determine;

(f) To determine, in accordance with uniform standards, any question arising in the

administration, interpretation and application of the Plan, such determination to be

conclusive and binding to the extent the same shall not be plainly inconsistent

with the terms ofthe Plan or any applicable law;

(g) To decide any disputes which may arise;

(h) To give instructions and directions to the Funding Agent as necessary;

(i) To designate, consistent with sound standards, the actuarial bases to be used for

all actuarial calculations; and

(j) To keep record of all allocations and designations of fiduciary duties made in

accordance with the provisions of this Article.

- 16 -
1702988vl



The Employer may allocate some or all of its powers and responsibilities as Plan

Administrator, as enumerated above, to such individuals, committees of individuals, firms or

corporations as it shall determine, in which case such individuals, committees of individuals,

firms or corporations shall be named fiduciaries. Such allocations shall be made in writing and

shall name the entity to whom the allocation has been made and describe the fiduciary duties

allocated to it.

Section 9.02 Responsibilities ofthe Employer. The Employer shall have the following

powers and responsibilities with regard to the Plan, apart from any powers and responsibilities it

shall have as Plan Administrator:

(a) To appoint and change the Funding Agent;

(b) To periodically review the performance of all entities to which the Employer

allocates or delegates responsibilities under this Section and under Section 9.01.

Section 9.03 Responsibilities ofthe Town. The Town shall have the following powers

and responsibilities with regard to the Plan:

(a) To amend or terminate the Plan; and

(b) To determine the ftmding policy of the Plan.

Section 9.04 Responsibilities ofthe Funding Agent. The Funding Agent shall have the

following powers and responsibilities:

(a) To maintain custody of the Fund;

(b) To manage and control the investment of the Fund;

(c) To disburse benefits as instructed by the Plan Administrator or the Plan

Administrator's agent;

(d) To perform any other functions which are specifically allocated to it in its

agreement with the Employer.

- 17 -
1702988vl



Section 9.05 Limitation ofResponsibilities. To the extent pennitted by applicable law,

the responsibility of the Town, Employer, Plan Administrator, and Funding Agent, or any

individuals, committees of individuals, finns or corporations, to which responsibilities are

allocated, or who are designated to perfonn fiduciary responsibilities, as provided herein, shall

be limited to that expressly granted and neither the Town, Employer, Plan Administrator, and

Funding Agent, nor any such individuals, committees of individuals, finns or corporations shall

be responsible except for his, her, its or their own acts or omissions.

Section 9.06 Finality of Plan Administrator's Detenninations and Authority. In

exercising its powers and responsibilities as the Plan Administrator, the Employer, or, when

appropriate, the individuals, committees of individuals, finns or corporations to whom any

power and responsibility is allocated, shall have the sole and absolute discretion to make any

detennination or decision and, when made, such detennination and decision shall be final,

conclusive and binding.

Section 9.07 Employer to Act by Board. Whenever the Employer is required to make

any appointment or allocate or delegate any responsibilities, such action may be taken by the

Board. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Board may confer upon any

individual, committee of individuals, finn or corporation further power to delegate

responsibilities.

- 18 -
1702988vl



ARTICLE 10

AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION OF PLAN

Section 10.01 Right to Amend Plan. The Town reserves the right at any time and from

time to time by action of the Board to amend, in whole or in part, any or all of the provisions of

the Plan provided that (a) no amendment shall be made which conflicts with the Bargaining

Agreement in effect on the effective date of such amendment, and (b) no such amendment shall

authorize or permit, at any time prior to the satisfaction of all liabilities with respect to the Plan,

any part of the Trust Fund to be used for or diverted to purposes other than for the exclusive

benefit of the persons covered by the Plan.

No such amendment shall have the effect of retroactively changing, or depriving

Participants, Beneficiaries and contingent annuitants of, rights already accrued under the Plan,

provided that any amendment may be made retroactively which is necessary to bring the Plan

into conformity with governmental regulations in order to qualify, or maintain the qualification

of, the Plan under the Internal Revenue Code.

Section 10.02 Right to Terminate Plan. The Town, by action of the Board, reserves the

right to terminate the Plan with respect to its Employees and Participants at any time, provided

that no termination shall be made which conflicts with the Bargaining Agreement in effect. Any

such termination shall be set out in a written instrument, executed on behalf ofthe Town, by

action of the Board. This Plan shall be deemed to have been terminated in the manner and to the

extent set forth in such instrument.

- 19-
1702988vl



ARTICLE 11

ALLOCATION OF ASSETS

Section 11.01 Allocation ofAssets. In the event oftennination ofthe Plan, each

Participant's Accrued Benefit, or in the event of the tennination of the Plan with respect to a

group ofParticipants which constitutes a partial tennination of the Plan, the Accrued Benefit of

each Participant affected by such partial tennination, calculated as of the date of such event, shall

become fully vested and nonforfeitable to the extent funded by Plan assets. To the extent that the

Plan is not sufficiently funded to pay all Accrued Benefits that are due Participants under this

Section, the Plan shall allocate Plan assets in accordance with section 4044 of ERISA.

Section 11.02 Impossibility ofDiversion ofAssets. Anything in this Plan which might

be construed to the contrary notwithstanding, it shall be impossible at any time prior to the

satisfaction of all liabilities with respect to Participants for any part ofthe corpus or income of

the Fund to be used for, or diverted to, purposes other than for the purposes herein stated.

Section 11.03 Pennanent Discontinuance of Contributions. In the event contributions

hereto are pennanently discontinued, the provisions of Section 11.01 shall apply as of the date of

discontinuance.

- 20-
1702988vl



ARTICLE 12

MERGER OR CONSOLIDATION OF PLANS

Section 12.01 Successor Employer. In the event ofthe dissolution, merger,

consolidation or reorganization of the Employer, provision may be made by which the Plan and

Funding Agreement will be continued by the successor, and, in that event, such successor shall

be substituted for the Employer under the Plan. The substitution of the successor shall constitute

an assumption ofPlan liabilities by the successor, and the successor shall have all the powers,

duties and responsibilities of the Employer under the Plan.

- 21 -
1702988vl



ARTICLE 13

FUND

Section 13.01 Appointment and Transfer ofFunds. To carry out the provisions of the

Plan, the Employer will provide for the custody and investment of the funds which arise from

contributions made pursuant to the Plan and for the payment of benefits under the Plan by

agreement with such Funding Agent as it may from time to time determine, which agreement

shall constitute a part of the Plan.

Section 13.02 Successor Funding Agent; Miscellaneous. The Employer in its sole and

absolute discretion reserves the right at any time and from time to time to designate a successor

Funding Agent; to enter into and make amendments to such contracts or agreements with the

Funding Agent as it may deem desirable to accomplish the objectives of the Plan; to provide for

the payment thereafter of the contributions hereunder to another Funding Agent; and to require a

Funding Agent to transfer funds arising from contributions pursuant to the Plan to another

Funding Agent, provided that the Employer shall have no power to perform any of such actions

in such manner as will cause or pennit any part of the funds accumulated pursuant to the Plan to

be diverted to purposes other than for the exclusive benefit ofParticipants and their

Beneficiaries, survivors or estates, retired employees or their Beneficiaries or as will cause or

pennit any portion of such funds to revert to or become the property of the Employer prior to the

satisfaction of the liabilities under the Plan.

- 22-
1702988vl



ARTICLE 14

LIMITATION ON BENEFITS

14.01 Limitation ofBenefits to Comply With Section 415. Effective for limitation years

beginning on or after July 1, 2007, and notwithstanding any Plan provisions to the contrary, in no

event may the maximum annual retirement benefit payable to a Participant under the Plan and

any other defined benefit plan of the Employer at any time within the limitation year exceed the

limitations contained in Internal Revenue Code Section 415as amended from time to time,

including, without limitation, P.L. 108-218, the Pension Funding Equity Act of2004, P.L. 109

280, the Pension Protection Act of2006, and P.L. 110-458, the Worker, Retiree and Employer

Recovery Act of2008 and the regulations and guidance issued thereunder, which are hereby

incorporated by reference, including, without limitation, the following definitions as set out

therein:

(a) The term "compensation" for purposes of compliance with the limitations

under Internal Revenue Code Section 415 shall include the following:

(i) wages as reported for purposes of federal income tax on Form W-2;

(ii) elective deferrals as defined in Section 402(g)(3) of the Internal

Revenue Code and salary reduction contributions of the Participant not

includible in his or her gross income by reason of Section 125 (including

amounts not available to a Participant in cash in lieu of group health

coverage because the Participant is unable to certify that he or she has

other health coverage) or Section 132(f) of the Internal Revenue Code;

and

(iii) compensation paid after severance from employment as set out in

Treas. Reg. § 1.415(c)-2(e)(3).

(b) The term "limitation year" for purposes of this Section 14.01 means the

Plan Year.

- 23 -
1702988vl



ARTICLE 15

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 15.01 Exclusive Benefit. This Plan shall be for the exclusive benefit of

Participants and their Beneficiaries and all of the funds held by the Funding Agent shall be

exclusively devoted to such purpose. No portion of any such funds shall revert to or become the

property of the Employer prior to the termination of the Plan and the satisfaction of all liabilities

with respect to Participants and their Beneficiaries.

Section 15.02 Determination ofOualified Domestic Relations Order (Order). A

domestic relations order shall be treated as an Order hereunder provided such order specifically

creates or recognizes the existence of an alternate payee's right to, or assigns to an alternate

payee the right to, receive all or a portion of the benefits payable with respect to a Participant

under the Plan.

Section 15.03 Facility of Payment. If the Employer shall receive evidence satisfactory to

it that any person entitled to receive any benefit hereunder is, at the time when such benefit

becomes payable, physically, mentally or legally incompetent to receive such benefit and to give

a valid receipt therefor and that another individual or institution is then maintaining or has

custody ofsuch person and that no guardian, committee or other representative of the estate of

such person shall have been duly appointed, the Employer may cause payment of such benefit to

such individual or institution maintaining or having the custody of such person, and the receipt of

such individual or institution shall be a valid and complete discharge for the payment of such

benefit. If a person dies before cashing any or all of the checks representing a payment or

payments due under the Plan, such payment or payments so payable to such deceased person

shall be made in the discretion of the Employer either to:

- 24-
1702988vl



(a) the person or persons who would be entitled to the deceased person's personal

property under the laws of the State of Connecticut (which shall also fix the

proportionate interest of such persons) if the person had died intestate a resident

of Connecticut at the time for such payment under the provisions of the Plan; or

(b) such relative or relatives ofthe deceased person by blood, marriage, or adoption

as the Board may select; or

(c) the estate of the deceased person.

Section 15.04 No Right to Continued Employment. Nothing in this Plan shall be

construed as giving any Employee of the Employer the right to be retained in the Employer's

employ or the right to any payment whatsoever except to the extent ofthe benefits provided for

in the Plan. The Employer expressly reserves the right to dismiss any Employee at any time

without liability for the effect which such dismissal might have upon the Employee as a

Participant in this Plan.

Section 15.05 Claims Procedure. Any denial of a claim for benefits under the Plan shall

be stated in writing by the Employer and delivered or mailed to the Participant or Beneficiary

whose claim for benefits has been denied, and shall set forth specific reasons for such denial,

written in a manner calculated to be understood by such Participant or Beneficiary. Within sixty

(60) days after receiving the notification of such denial, any such Participant or Beneficiary may

notify the Employer in writing ofthe Participant's desire for a review of such decision. Upon

such notification, the Employer shall schedule a review proceeding at which the Participant shall

restate the Participant's arguments for such claim to a representative of the Employer. The

Employer's decision following such hearing shall be made within thirty (30) days and shall be

communicated in writing to the Participant.

- 25 -
1702988vl



Section 15.06 Qualified Plan. The Plan is intended to be a governmental plan under

section 414(d) ofthe Internal Revenue Code, and "qualified" as such under section 401(a) of the

Internal Revenue Code. The Funding Agreement is intended to comply with all provisions of the

Internal Revenue Code relating to such trusts. All questions shall be resolved to be consistent

with such intent.

Section 15.07 Return ofEmployer Contributions Under Special Circumstances. Any

Employer contribution made under a mistake of fact may be returned to the Employer within one

year of such contribution. Contributions to the Plan are conditioned on the initial qualification of

the Plan under Section 401(a) ofthe Code, and if the Plan is found not to so qualify,

contributions made in respect of any period subsequent to the effective date of the

disqualification shall be returned to the contributor within one year after the denial of such initial

qualification.

Section 15.08 Special Rules Regarding Qualified Military Service (USERRA).

(a) General. Notwithstanding any provision of this Plan to the contrary,

contributions, benefits and service credit with respect to qualified military service

will be provided in accordance with section 414(u) of the Internal Revenue Code.

(b) Death Benefits. In the case ofa death or disability OCCUlTing on or after January

1, 2007, if a Participant dies while performing qualified military service (as

defined in section 414(u)), the survivors of the Participant are entitled to any

additional benefits (other than benefit accruals relating to the period ofqualified

military service) provided under the Plan as if the Participant had resumed and

then terminated employment on account of death.

(c) Benefit Accrual. For benefit accrual purposes, the Plan treats an individual who,

on or after January 1, 2007, dies or becomes disabled (as defined under the tenns

of the Plan) while performing qualified military service with respect to the

- 26-
1702988vl



Employer as if the individual had resumed employment in accordance with the

individual's reemployment rights under USERRA, on the day preceding death or

disability (as the case may be) and terminated employment on the actual date of

death or disability. With respect to the period of said individual's qualified

military service, the Plan will treat said service as counting toward said

individual's Years of Service under the Plan.

(d) Determination of Benefits. To the extent the Plan requires employee

contributions in order for the Participant to accrue benefits under the Plan, then

the Plan will determine the amount of employee contributions of an individual

treated as reemployed under these provisions for purposes of applying Code

Section 414(u)(8)(C) on the basis ofthe individual's average actual employee

contributions for the lesser of: (i) the 12-month period of service with the Town

immediately prior to qualified military service; or (ii) if service with the Town is

less than such 12-month period, the actual length of continuous service with the

Town.

(e) Differential Wage Payments. For years beginning after December 31, 2008, (1)

an individual receiving a differential wage payment from the Town, as defined by

Code Section 3401 (h)(2), shall be treated as an Employee ofthe Town making the

payment, (2) the differential wage payment shall be treated as compensation, and

(3) the Plan shall not be treated as failing to meet the requirements of any

provision described in Code Section 414(u)(1)(C) by reason of any contribution

or benefit which is based on the differential wage payment.

Section 15.09 Rollover Contributions - Election Rules. Notwithstanding any provision

of the Plan to the contrary that would otherwise limit a Distributee's election under this

subsection, a Distributee may elect, at the time and in the manner prescribed by the Plan

- 27-
1702988vl



Administrator in accordance with applicable regulations, to have any portion of an Eligible

Rollover Distribution paid directly to an Eligible Retirement Plan specified by the Distributee in

a Direct Rollover.

(a) A Distributee who is entitled to elect a Direct Rollover with respect to all or any

portion of a distribution but who does not make any election shall be deemed to

have rejected the Direct Rollover option.

(b) A Distributee who elects a Direct Rollover with respect to any Eligible Rollover

Distribution that is one in a series of installment payments made at least annually

over a period of less than 10 years shall be deemed to have made the same

election with respect to all subsequent Eligible Rollover Distributions in the series

unless and until the Distributee changes the election. A change of election shall

be accomplished by notifying the Plan Administrator of the change in the form

and manner prescribed by the Plan Administrator.

(c) Within a reasonable period of time before an Eligible Rollover Distribution is to

be made, and in accordance with section 402(f) of the Internal Revenue Code and

applicable regulations, the Plan Administrator shall provide to the Distributee an

explanation of the right to elect a Direct Rollover, the federal tax withholding

consequences of failing to elect a Direct Rollover, the tax effects ofmaking a

rollover (other than a Direct Rollover) to an Eligible Retirement Plan, and the tax

rules applicable to lump sum distributions, if applicable. A Distributee who elects

a Direct Rollover must provide all information that the Plan Administrator may

require to complete the Direct Rollover.

(d) For the purposes of this section, the following definitions will apply:

(1) An "Eligible Rollover Distribution" is any distribution of all or any

portion of the balance of the credit of the Distributee, except that an

Eligible Rollover Distribution does not include: any distribution that is

one of a series of substantially equal periodic payments (at least annually)

- 28-
1702988vl



1702988vl

made for the life (or the life expectancy) of the Distributee or the joint

lives (or joint life expectancies) of the Distributee and the Distributee's

designated beneficiary, or for a specified period often years or more; any

distribution to the extent such distribution is required under Section

40 I(a)(9) of the Internal Revenue Code; and the portion of any

distribution that is not includable in gross income (determined without

regard to the exclusion for net unrealized appreciation with respect to

employer securities). A pOliion of a distribution shall not fail to be an

eligible rollover distribution merely because the portion consists of after

tax employee contributions which are not includible in gross income.

However, such portion may be paid only to an individual retirement

account or annuity described in section 408(a) or (b) of the Code, or to a

qualified defined contribution plan described in section 401(a) or 403(a) of

the Code that agrees to separately account for amounts so transfen-ed,

including separately accounting for the portion of such distribution which

is includible in gross income and the portion of such distribution which is

not so includible.

(2) A distribution ofless than $200 that would otherwise be an Eligible

Rollover Distribution with the meaning of item (1) shall not be an Eligible

Rollover Distribution if it is reasonable to expect that all such distributions

to the Distributee from the Plan during the same calendar year will total

less than $200.

(3) An "Eligible Retirement Plan" is an individual retirement account

described in Section 408(a) ofthe Internal Revenue Code, an individual

retirement annuity described in Section 408(b) of the Internal Revenue

Code or a qualified trust described in Section 401(a) ofthe Internal

Revenue Code, that accepts the Distributee's Eligible Rollover

- 29-



1702988vl

Distribution. An Eligible Retirement Plan shall also mean an annuity

contract described in section 403(b) of the Code and an eligible plan under

section 457(b) of the Code which is maintained by a state, political

subdivision of a state, or any agency or instrumentality of a state or

political subdivision of a state and which agrees to separately account for

amounts transferred into such plan from this plan. Effective for

distributions made after December 31, 2001, the definition of Eligible

Retirement Plan shall also apply in the case of a distribution to a surviving

spouse, or to a spouse or former spouse who is the alternate payee under a

qualified domestic relation order, as defined in section 414(P) of the Code.

For distributions made after December 31,2007, a Participant may elect to

roll over directly an Eligible Rollover Distribution to a Roth IRA

described in section 408A(b) of the Code.

(4) A "Distributee" includes an employee or former employee. In addition,

the employee's or former employee's surviving spouse and the employee's

or former employee's spouse or former spouse who is the alternate payee

under a qualified domestic relations order, as defined in Section 414(p) of

the Internal Revenue Code, are Distributees with regard to the interest of

the spouse or former spouse. Effective July 1, 2010, a non-spouse

Beneficiary who is a "designated beneficiary" under Code Section

401(a)(9)(E), by a Direct Rollover (as defined above), may roll over all or

any portion ofhis or her distribution to an individual retirement account

that the Beneficiary establishes for purposes of receiving the distribution.

In order to roll over the distribution, the distribution otherwise must satisfy

the definition of an Eligible Rollover Distribution (as defined above). Any

distribution made prior to July 1, 2010 is not subject to the direct rollover

requirements of Code Section 401(a)(3I) (including Code Section

- 30-



401(a)(31)(B), the notice requirements of Code Section 402(f), or the

mandatory withholding requirements of Code Section 3405(c)). If the

Pmiicipant dies before his or her required beginning date and the non

spouse Beneficiary rolls over to an IRA the maximum amount eligible for

rollover, the Beneficiary may elect to use either the 5-year rule or the life

expectancy rule, pursuant to Treas. Reg. § 1.401(a)(9)-3, A-4(c), in

determining the required minimum distributions from the IRA that

receives the non-spouse Beneficiary's distribution.

(5) A "Direct Rollover" is a payment by the Plan directly to the Eligible

Retirement Plan specified by the Distributee.

Section 15.10 Governing Law. The provisions of the Plan shall be construed,

administered and enforced according to the applicable provisions ofthe Internal Revenue Code,

and regulations thereunder, and the laws ofthe State of Connecticut.

Section 15.11 Gender and Number. Words used in the masculine include the feminine

gender. Words used in the singular or plural shall be construed as if plural or singular,

respectively, where they would so apply.

Section 15.12 Titles. Titles of articles and notes in margins are inserted for convenience

and shall not affect the meaning or construction of the Plan.

TOWN OF COLCHESTER

Dated: _

1702988vl

By _

Its First Selectman

- 31 -



*

INCORPORATING:

Amendment No. 1 (2005 1Sf), effeetive July 1, 2005

The Town of Colchester Police Department

Pension Plan

This document incorporates the applicable requirements of the Uruguay
Round l\:greements Act ("GATT"), Unifurmed Services Employment and
Reemployment Rights Act of 1994, Small Business Job Protection Act of
1996, the Taxpayer Relief Act of 1997, the Internal Revenue Service
Restructuring and Refonn Act of 1998, and the Community Renev/a1 Tax
Relief Act of 2000 (Gollective1y, "GUST"), and the applicable provisions of
the Economic GIWNth and Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2001
("EGTRRA").

*This "Norldng copy does not I"effect signatures. Shipman & Good"llin LLP has
execution copies of the Plan and aU amendments.

Effective July 1, ~2010



THE TOWN OF COLCHESTER POLICE DEPARTMENT

PENSION PLAN

ARTICLE PAGE

1. DEFINITIONS......................................................................................... 1

2. ELIGIBILITY 6

3. FUNDING POLICY; CONTRIBUTIONS.............................................. 7

4. RETIREMENT DATES 8

5. CALCULATION OF RETIREMENT BENEFIT 9

6. FORMS OF PAYMENT OF RETIREMENT BENEFIT........................ 10

7. RETIREMENT BENEFIT FOR TERMINATED
VESTED PARTICIPANTS..................................................................... 13

8. DEATH BENEFITS 15

9. ADMINISTRATION............................................................................... 16

10. AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION OF PLAN................................... 19

11. ALLOCATION OF ASSETS 20

12. MERGER OR CONSOLIDATION OF PLANS..................................... 21

13. FUND....................................................................................................... 22

14. LIMITATION ON BENEFITS 23

15. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS :B-24

17Q2988vl



PREAMBLE

This plan contains provisions set forth in the July 1, 2003 - June 30, 2007

Collective Bargaining Agreement between the Town of Colchester and Colchester Police

Union, Local 2693T, Council #15, AFSCME, AFL-CIO. This document is intended to

constitute a qualified governmental pension plan under Internal Revenue Code Section

401(a).

17Q2988vl



ARTICLE 1

DEFINITIONS

Section 1.01 Accrued Benefit. A Participant's Accrued Benefit, at any given point in

time, shall be as set forth in Section 5.01.

Section 1.02 Actuarial Equivalent. A benefit of equivalent value to a life annuity

benefit determined using the U.P. 1994 mortality table and 6% interest.

Section 1.03 Bargaining Agreement. The collective bargaining agreement in effect

from time to time between the Bargaining Unit and the Town.

Section 1.04 Bargaining Unit. Colchester Police Union, Local 2693T, Council #15,

AFSCME, AFL-CIO.

Section 1.05 Beneficiary. Any person or persons designated by the Participant, or

otherwise entitled, to receive any benefit hereunder not received by the Participant or the

Participant's Surviving Spouse.

Section 1.06 Board. The Board of Selectmen.

Section 1.07 Town. The Town ofCo1chester.

Section 1.08 Compensation. The Employee's weekly base salary only, excluding

(without limitation) payments for extra duty, overtime, longevity or shift premiums.

Compensation shall be determined as if no elective salary reduction has been made pursuant to

Sections 125 (including amounts not available to a Participant in cash in lieu of group health

1702988vl



coverage because the Participant is unable to certify that he or she has other health coverage) and

457(b) ofthe Code.

The annual compensation of each Participant taken into account in determining benefit

accruals shall not exceed $200,000. Annual compensation means compensation during the plan

year or such other consecutive l2-month period over which compensation is otherwise

determined under the plan (the "determination period"). The $200,000 limit on annual

compensation shall be adjusted for cost-of-living increases in accordance with section

401(a)(17)(B) of the Code. The cost-of-living adjustment in effect for a calendar year applies to

annual compensation for the determination period that begins with or within such calendar year.

Notwithstanding any provision ofthe Plan to the contrary. Compensation shall not be

reduced by elective defen-als or by salary reduction amounts contributed to any cafeteria plan of

the Town under Sections 125 (including. effective for Plan Years beginning after December 31,

1997, deemed Section 125 amounts not available to a Pmticipant in cash in lieu of grOUP health

coverage because the Participant is unable to certify that he or she has other health coverage) or

B2(D of the Code, or by any salary reduction amounts pursuant to Section 402(g)(3) ofthe

Code.

Section 1.09 Dependent. The term as defined in Section 152 ofthe Internal Revenue

Code of 1986, as amended from time to time.

Section 1.10 Effective Date. July 1,2005.

- 2 -
1702988vl



Section 1.11 Employee. Any regular, full-time, investigatory and uniformed member

ofthe Town's Police Department who is duly sworn and vested with police powers, excluding

any such member excluded from the Bargaining Unit by the Municipal Employees Relations Act

("MERA").

Section 1.12 Employee Contributions. Contributions described in Section 3.03.

Section 1.13 Employer. The Town of Colchester and any governmental entity

succeeding to the rights or assuming the obligations hereunder in the manner described in Article

13 hereof.

Section 1.14 Final Average Salary. The Employee's Compensation for the highest three

Plan Years of active employment with the Employer divided by three (3).

Section 1.15 Fund. The funds held by the Funding Agent derived from contributions

made pursuant to the Plan, any property into which the same or any part thereof may be

converted, and any increment thereto or income thereon.

Section 1.16 Funding Agent. The Board or any other trustee, insurance company or

other person, or any combination ofthe foregoing, which is maintaining custody ofthe funds

which derive from contributions made pursuant to the Plan and from which benefits shall be

paid, or any successor to such person.

Section 1.17 Funding Agreement. The agreement of trust and/or group annuity contract

pursuant to which the Funding Agent maintains custody of the Fund.

- 3 -
1702988vl



Section 1.18 Participant. An Employee participating in the Plan pursuant to Article 2

hereof.

Section 1.19 Plan. The Town of Colchester Police Department Pension Plan as set

forth herein and as hereafter amended.

Section 1.20 Plan Year. The 12 month period commencing July 1 and ending June 30.

Section 1.21 Qualified Domestic Relations Order (Order). A Qualified Domestic

Relations Order (Order) is a signed domestic relations order issued by a state court or agency that

creates, recognizes or assigns to an altemate payee(s) the right to receive all or a part of a

Participant's Plan benefit. An altemate payee is a Spouse, fonner Spouse, child or other

dependent who is treated as a Beneficiary under the Plan as a result of the Order.

Section 1.22 Spouse or Surviving Spouse. The spouse or surviving spouse of the

Participant under applicable state law, provided that a fonner spouse will be treated as the

Spouse or Surviving Spouse to the extent provided under a Qualified Domestic Relations Order.

Section 1.23 Year of Service. An annual period during which an Employee perfonns

active service with the Employer in accordance with the tenns of the Bargaining Agreement.

(Any less than whole year periods of service shall be disregarded.) The first such annual period

shall begin on the date, on or after the Effective Date, on which an Employee commences

employment, and subsequent annual periods shall begin on anniversaries thereof; provided,

however, that solely for purposes of detennining the Accrued Benefit pursuant to Section 5.01

the first such annual period for a Designated Prior Service Participant shall begin on the later of

(i) the date that is 6 years prior to the Effective Date, and (ii) the date on which such Designated

Prior Service Participant commenced employment. For purposes ofthis Section, "Designated

- 4 -
17Q2988vl



Prior Service Participant" means an Employee who commenced active service with the

Employer in accordance with the terms of the Bargaining Agreement prior to the Effective Date

and who was continuously employed in such capacity from such employment commencement

date through the Effective Date.

To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Town shall permit a Designated Prior

Service Participant to purchase additional Years of Service for annual periods during which such

Participant performed active service with the Employer, in accordance with the terms ofthe

Bargaining Agreement, prior to July 1, 1999. The full cost of the purchase of such service, as

determined by, and in the sole discretion of, the Plan's Actuary using reasonable assumptions

with respect to relevant factors (including, but not limited to, Final Average Salary, retirement

date and interest rate), shall be paid by such Participant. The Town shall adopt reasonable

procedures for effectuating such purchases. [Amendment No.1 (2005 1~

- 5 -
1702988vl



ARTICLE 2

ELIGIBILITY

Section 2.01 Eligibility to Pmiicipate. Each Employee shall become a Participant on

the date the Employee commences making Employee Contributions.

Section 2.02 Reemployment. If a Participant ceases to be an Employee and

subsequently becomes an Employee again, the Participant shall be eligible to participate in the

Plan as of the date on which the Participant again becomes an Employee and commences making

Employee Contributions.

- 6 -
17Q2988vl



ARTICLE 3

FUNDING POLICY; CONTRIBUTIONS

Section 3.01 The Fund. The Employer shall maintain a fund pursuant to one or more

Funding Agreements with one or more Funding Agents for the purpose ofreceiving,

administering, investing and reinvesting contributions made hereunder, and the proceeds thereof,

and for the purpose ofproviding for the payment of the benefits provided under the Plan.

Section 3.02 Contributions by the Employer. The Employer shall contribute to the cost

of the Plan by making periodic contributions to the Funding Agent on the basis of actuarial

calculations.

Section 3.03 Employee Contributions. Each Participant shall contribute to the Plan by

payroll deduction the amount of six percent (6%) of his or her Compensation for each week of

employment. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, in accordance with the resolution adopted

by the Board whereby the Employer shall pick up mandatory Employee Contributions to the

Plan, the Employer shall contribute to the Plan on behalf of each Participant the amount of six

percent (6%) ofthe Participant's Compensation. Such contributions are hereby designated as

Employee Contributions, but shall be treated as employer contributions pursuant to Section

414(h) of the Intemal Revenue Code.

Section 3.04 Expenses ofAdministration. All expenses of the administration of the

Plan, as well as the expenses of administration of the Fund, shall be paid from the Fund unless

sooner paid by the Employer.

- 7 -
170?988vl



ARTICLE 4

RETIREMENT DATES

Section 4.01 Retirement Date. A Participant's Retirement Date shall be the Patiicipant's

Normal Retirement Date (as defined in Section 4.02) or Late Retirement Date (as defined in

Section 4.03) whichever is applicable to the particular Participant.

Section 4.02 Normal Retirement Date. A Participant's Normal Retirement Date shall be

the first day of the month following the Participant's completion of twenty (20) Years of Service.

Section 4.03 Late Retirement Date. A Participant may remain in the service of the

Employer after the Participant's Normal Retirement Date. In such event, the payment of a

retirement benefit to the Participant shall be postponed to a Late Retirement Date which shall be

the first day of the month after the Participant stops working for the Employer.

- 8 -
1702988vl



ARTICLES

CALCULATION OF RETIREMENT BENEFIT

Section 5.01 Accrued Benefit. The Accrued Benefit of a Participant, at any date of

determination, shall be a monthly annuity commencing at the Participant's Normal Retirement

Date in an amount equal to one-twelfth of two and one-half percent (2.5%) of such Participant's

Final Average Salary multiplied by the Participant's Years of Service; provided, however, that

the maximum annual benefit provided by the Plan shall not exceed sixty percent (60%) of a

Participant's Final Average Salary.

Section 5.02 Retirement Benefit. A Participant's Retirement Benefit shall be the

Participant's Normal Retirement Benefit (as calculated in Section 5.03), Late Retirement Benefit

(as calculated in Section 5.04), or Retirement Benefit for Terminated Vested Participants (as

calculated in Section 7.04), whichever is applicable to the particular Participant.

Section 5.03 Calculation ofNormal Retirement Benefit. A Participant's Normal

Retirement Benefit shall be the Participant's Accrued Benefit calculated as of the Participant's

Normal Retirement Date.

Section 5.04 Calculation of Late Retirement Benefit. A Participant who continues to be

an Employee of the Employer after the Participant's Normal Retirement Date shall receive a Late

Retirement Benefit, payable commencing on the Participant's Late Retirement Date, which shall

be the Participant's Accrued Benefit calculated in accordance with Section 5.01 as of the

Participant's Late Retirement Date, using Final Average Salary and Years of Service through the

Participant's Late Retirement Date.

- 9 -
1702988vl



ARTICLE 6

FORMS OF PAYMENT OF RETIREMENT BENEFIT

Section 6.01 Standard Fonn ofBenefit. The standard fonn ofRetirement Benefit for a

Participant shall be an amount equal to the amount detennined in the applicable Section of

Article 5, payable as a monthly annuity commencing on said applicable Retirement Date and

payable on the first day of each month thereafter during the life of the Participant.

Section 6.02 Optional Fonns ofBenefit. A Participant may choose, subject to such

unifonn tenns and conditions as the Employer shall promulgate, to receive the Actuarial

Equivalent of the standard fonn ofbenefit that would otherwise have been payable, commencing

as of his or her applicable Retirement Date, in an optional tonn. Those options which will be

provided are the following:

Option 1 - Life Annuity - A monthly annuity for the life of the Participant commencing

on the Participant's Retirement Date.

Option 2 - Joint and Survivor Annuity Option - A monthly joint annuity for the life of the

Participant commencing on the Participant's Retirement Date, and payable monthly

thereafter, with a survivor annuity during the life of the Participant's Beneficiary of (a)

100%, (b) 75%, or (c) 50% of the joint annuity as the Participant shall have designated.

Option 3 - lOYear Certain and Life Option- A monthly annuity for the life of the

Participant, but guaranteed for a period of 10 years beginning on the Participant's

Retirement Date. If the Participant dies before the expiration ofthe 10-year period,

payments shall be payable to a Beneficiary for the balance of such 10 year period.

- 10 -



No option shall become effective unless it meets a reasonable and good faith interpretation ofthe

minimum distribution requirements set forth under section 401 (a)(9) of the Code and any

regulations thereunder, including, 'vvithout limitation, the Section ,~O1(a)(9) final regulations that

vlere issued on June 14, 2004 .~

Section 6.03 Latest Date for Commencement ofPayments. Pursuant to section

401(a)(9) of the Code. certain minimum required distributions shall be made from the Plan. The

following provisions are intended as a reasonable and good faith interpretation of section

40lCa)(9) of the Code. consistent with the special rules for governmental plans and the final

regulations under section 401 (a)(9) of the Code.

(a) General Rules.

(i) The required beginning date of a Participant who attains age 70-Y2 shall be

the first day of April of the calendar year following the later of the

calendar year in which the Participant attains age 70-Y2 or terminates

employment;

(ii) A Pmiicipant shall commence his or her benefit distributions (in amounts

which at least satisfy the minimum required distributions of Section

401 (a)(9) of the Code) no later than the required beginning date applicable

to such Participant.

(b) Overall General Rule. Payment ofbenefits shall commence not later than the

60th day after the close of the Plan Year in which the latest of the following

events have occurred:

(i) The Participant has attained the earlier of age 65 or the normal retirement

age;

(ii) The tenth anniversary ofthe year in which a Participant first became a

Participant has occurred; or

(iii) The Participant has terminated service with the Employer.

- 11 -
17Q?988vI



170?988vl

(c) Actuarial Adjustments. For a Participant whose required beginning date is the

April 1 of the calendar year following the calendar year ofthe Participant's

termination of employment, as determined by Section 401 (a)(9)(c)(i)(II), in the

event such Participant terminates employment in a calendar year after the

calendar year in which the Pmiicipant attains age 70-Y2, then such Participant's

retirement benefit shall be actuarially increased in accordance with Section

40l(a)(9)(c)(iii) and any applicable regulations or other IRS guidance issued

thereunder.

- 12 -



ARTICLE 7

RETIREMENT BENEFIT FOR

TERMINATED VESTED PARTICIPANTS

Section 7.01 Retirement Benefit for Terminated Vested Participants. A Participant who

terminates employment with the Employer prior to the Participant's Normal Retirement Date and

who is vested in the Participant's Accmed Benefit, is a Terminated Vested Participant and shall

receive a Retirement Benefit for Terminated Vested Participants as defined in Section 7.04.

Section 7.02 Vesting ofAccmed Benefit Attributable to Employer Contribution. A

Participant shall be vested in the Participant's Accrued Benefit attributable to Employer

Contributions upon the occurrence of one of the following events:

(a) Upon completing ten (10) Years of Service; or

(b) Upon the termination of the Plan as provided in Article 10 hereof.

Until the occurrence of one of such events, the Participant's vested percentage shall be 0%.

Section 7.03 Vested Percentage in Employee Contribution. A Participant shall always

be 100% vested in the Employee Contributions that a Participant makes to the Plan.

Section 7.04 Calculation ofRetirement Benefit for Tenninated Vested Participants.

The Retirement Benefit for a Terminated Vested Participant shall be the Participant's Accmed

Benefit, calculated as of the date of the Participant's telmination of employment. Such Accmed

Benefit shall be determined under Plan provisions in effect on the Participant's date of

telmination of employment.

- 13 -
17Q2988vl



Section 7.05 Time of Commencement and Manner of Payment ofBenefit for

Terminated Vested Participants. A Terminated Vested Participant may begin receiving the

Participant's Retirement Benefit on the first day of the month following his or her 55th birthday.

The form ofbenefit shall be determined in accordance with the rules set forth in Article 6.

Section 7.06 Return of Employee Contributions. A Participant who terminated without

a vested Accrued Benefit shall receive a refund of the Participant's Employee Contributions to

the Plan.

A Participant who terminated with a vested Accrued Benefit may elect to receive a refund

of the Participant's Employee Contributions to the Plan. Election of such a refund shall cause the

Participant to forfeit any remaining interest in the Pmiicipant's Accrued Benefit.

Section 7.07 Forfeitures. Any forfeitures on termination of service, or for other reason,

shall be used as soon as possible to reduce the mllount of contributions by the Employer.

- 14-
1702988vl



ARTICLE 8

DEATH BENEFITS

Section 8.01 Return ofEmployee Contributions To Beneficiary. Upon the death of a

Participant who has not commenced receiving his or her Retirement Benefit, a lump sum equal to

the total of the Participant's Employee Contributions, and any contributions by a Designated

Prior Service Participant as described in Section 1.23, shall be paid to the Beneficiary designated

by the Employee, or ifno Beneficiary has been designated, then to the estate of the Participant.

Upon the death of a Participant who has commenced receiving his or her Retirement Benefit, the

existence and nature of any death benefit with respect to any annuity form ofbenefit shall

depend on the type of annuity elected, and no death benefit shall be payable pursuant to this

Article 8.

- 15 -



ARTICLE 9

ADMINISTRATION

Section 9.01 Responsibilities of the Plan Administrator. The Employer shall be the

Plan Administrator of the Plan, and shall have the following powers and responsibilities as Plan

Administrator of the Plan:

(a) To determine benefit rights;

(b) To adopt such method for the computation of periods of service and participation

as shall be permitted by law;

(c) To instmct the Funding Agent in the disbursement ofbenefits;

(d) To make such mles and regulations as it may deem necessary to carry out the

provisions of the Plan;

(e) To employ, where necessary or desirable in the administration of the Plan,

actuaries, attorneys, accountants and other individuals, who shall not be

fiduciaries merely as a result of their employment hereunder, and to delegate to

such individual such responsibilities as it shall determine;

(f) To determine, in accordance with uniform standards, any question arising in the

administration, interpretation and application of the Plan, such determination to be

conclusive and binding to the extent the same shall not be plainly inconsistent

with the terms ofthe Plan or any applicable law;

(g) To decide any disputes which may arise;

(h) To give instmctions and directions to the Funding Agent as necessary;

(i) To designate, consistent with sound standards, the actuarial bases to be used for

all actuarial calculations; and

G) To keep record of all allocations and designations of fiduciary duties made in

accordance with the provisions of this Article.

- 16 -
!70?988vI



The Employer may allocate some or all of its powers and responsibilities as Plan

Administrator, as enumerated above, to such individuals, committees of individuals, firms or

corporations as it shall determine, in which case such individuals, committees of individuals,

firms or corporations shall be named fiduciaries. Such allocations shall be made in writing and

shall name the entity to whom the allocation has been made and describe the fiduciary duties

allocated to it.

Section 9.02 Responsibilities of the Employer. The Employer shall have the following

powers and responsibilities with regard to the Plan, apart from any powers and responsibilities it

shall have as Plan Administrator:

(a) To appoint and change the Funding Agent;

(b) To periodically review the performance of all entities to which the Employer

allocates or delegates responsibilities under this Section and under Section 9.01.

Section 9.03 Responsibilities ofthe Town. The Town shall have the following powers

and responsibilities with regard to the Plan:

(a) To amend or terminate the Plan; and

(b) To determine the funding policy of thc Plan.

Section 9.04 Responsibilities of the Funding Agent. The Funding Agent shall have the

following powers and responsibilities:

(a) To maintain custody ofthe Fund;

(b) To manage and control the investment of the Fund;

(c) To disburse benefits as instructed by the Plan Administrator or the Plan

Administrator's agent;

(d) To perform any other functions which are specifically allocated to it in its

agreement with the Employer.

- 17 -
1702988vl



Section 9.05 Limitation ofResponsibilities. To the extent pennitted by applicable law,

the responsibility ofthe Town, Employer, Plan Administrator, and Funding Agent, or any

individuals, committees of individuals, finns or corporations, to which responsibilities are

allocated, or who are designated to perfonn fiduciary responsibilities, as provided herein, shall

be limited to that expressly granted and neither the Town, Employer, Plan Administrator, and

Funding Agent, nor any such individuals, committees of individuals, finns or corporations shall

be responsible except for his, her, its or their own acts or omissions.

Section 9.06 Finality ofPlan Administrator's Detenninations and Authority. In

exercising its powers and responsibilities as the Plan Administrator, the Employer, or, when

appropriate, the individuals, committees of individuals, finns or corporations to whom any

power and responsibility is allocated, shall have the sole and absolute discretion to make any

detennination or decision and, when made, such detennination and decision shall be final,

conclusive and binding.

Section 9.07 Employer to Act by Board. Whenever the Employer is required to make

any appointment or allocate or delegate any responsibilities, such action may be taken by the

Board. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Board may confer upon any

individual, committee of individuals, finn or corporation further power to delegate

responsibilities.

- 18 -
17Q2988vl



ARTICLE 10

AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION OF PLAN

Section 10.01 Right to Amend Plan. The Town reserves the right at any time and from

time to time by action of the Board to amend, in whole or in part, any or all of the provisions of

the Plan provided that (a) no amendment shall be made which conflicts with the Bargaining

Agreement in effect on the effective date of such amendment, and (b) no such amendment shall

authorize or permit, at any time prior to the satisfaction of all liabilities with respect to the Plan,

any part of the Trust Fund to be used for or diverted to purposes other than for the exclusive

benefit of the persons covered by the Plan.

No such amendment shall have the effect of retroactively changing, or depriving

Participants, Beneficiaries and contingent annuitants of, rights already accrued under the Plan,

provided that any amendment may be made retroactively which is necessary to bring the Plan

into conformity with governmental regulations in order to qualify, or maintain the qualification

of, the Plan under the Internal Revenue Code.

Section 10.02 Right to Terminate Plan. The Town, by action of the Board, reserves the

right to terminate the Plan with respect to its Employees and Participants at any time, provided

that no termination shall be made which conflicts with the Bargaining Agreement in effect. Any

such termination shall be set out in a written instrument, executed on behalf of the Town, by

action of the Board. This Plan shall be deemed to have been terminated in the manner and to the

extent set forth in such instrument.

- 19 -
1702988vl



ARTICLE 11

ALLOCATION OF ASSETS

Section 11.01 Allocation ofAssets. In the event of termination of the Plan, each

Participant's Accrued Benefit, or in the event of the termination of the Plan with respect to a

group ofParticipants which constitutes a partial termination of the Plan, the Accrued Benefit of

each Participant affected by such partial termination, calculated as of the date of such event, shall

become fully vested and nonfOlfeitable to the extent funded by Plan assets. To the extent that the

Plan is not sufficiently funded to pay all Accrued Benefits that are due Participants under this

Section, the Plan shall allocate Plan assets in accordance with section 4044 of ERISA.

Section 11.02 Impossibility ofDiversion ofAssets. Anything in this Plan which might

be construed to the contrary notwithstanding, it shall be impossible at any time prior to the

satisfaction of all liabilities with respect to Participants for any part of the corpus or income of

the Fund to be used for, or diverted to, purposes other than for the purposes herein stated.

Section 11.03 Permanent Discontinuance of Contributions. In the event contributions

hereto are permanently discontinued, the provisions of Section 11.01 shall apply as ofthe date of

discontinuance.

- 20-
17Q2988vI



ARTICLE 12

MERGER OR CONSOLIDATION OF PLANS

Section 12.01 Successor Employer. In the event of the dissolution, merger,

consolidation or reorganization of the Employer, provision may be made by which the Plan and

Funding Agreement will be continued by the successor, and, in that event, such successor shall

be substituted for the Employer under the Plan. The substitution ofthe successor shall constitute

an assumption ofPlan liabilities by the successor, and the successor shall have all the powers,

duties and responsibilities of the Employer under the Plan.

- 21 -
l1D2288vl



ARTICLE 13

FUND

Section 13.01 Appointment and Transfer ofFunds. To canoy out the provisions of the

Plan, the Employer will provide for the custody and investment of the funds which arise from

contributions made pursuant to the Plan and for the payment of benefits under the Plan by

agreement with such Funding Agent as it may from time to time determine, which agreement

shall constitute a part of the Plan.

Section 13.02 Successor Funding Agent; Miscellaneous. The Employer in its sole and

absolute discretion reserves the right at any time and from time to time to designate a successor

Funding Agent; to enter into and make amendments to such contracts or agreements with the

Funding Agent as it may deem desirable to accomplish the objectives of the Plan; to provide for

the payment thereafter of the contributions hereunder to another Funding Agent; and to require a

Funding Agent to transfer funds arising from contributions pursuant to the Plan to another

Funding Agent, provided that the Employer shall have no power to perform any of such actions

in such manner as will cause or permit any part of the funds accumulated pursuant to the Plan to

be diverted to purposes other than for the exclusive benefit of Participants and their

Beneficiaries, survivors or estates, retired employees or their Beneficiaries or as will cause or

pem1it any portion of such funds to revert to or become the property of the Employer prior to the

satisfaction of the liabilities under the Plan.

- 22-
1702988vl



ARTICLE 14

LIMITATION ON BENEFITS

Section 14.01 General. This Aliicle 11 is intended to impose a limitation on the benefits

provided in the Plan required by section 415 of the Internal Revenue Code and the Regulations

thereunder, the tC1111S ofvrhich are specifically incorporated herein. Not',vithstanding any

provision of this Plan to the contrary, Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code and the

Regulations issued pursuant thereto, as amended from time to time, including, but not limited to,

special rules for police, shall govern the limitation on the benefits provided in the Plan. The

definitions contained in Section 14.01 shall apply to all terms used in this Aliicle 11 regardless

of any different definitions contained elsevihere in the Plan. Section 11.02 "Basic Limitation"

(except for the last sentence thereof) applies regardless of'vVhether any Participant is or ever has

been a Pmiicipant in anotller qualified plan maintained by the Employer. If any Participant is or

ever has been a Participant in anotller qualified plml or a welfare benefit fund, as defined in

section 119(e) of the Internal Revenue Code, or an individual medical account, as defined in

section 415(1)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, which provides for Annual Additions maintained

by tlle Employer, Section 11.03 "Overall Limitation" is also applicable to that Participant's

benefits.

Section H.02 Basic Limitation. The Annual Benefit othenvise payable to a Pmiicipant

at any time '.'lill not exceed the Maximum Pen11issible Amount. If the benefit the Participant

'<vould otherviise accme in a Limitation Year viould produce an i\nnual Benefit in excess of the

Maximum Pen11issible l'dl1ount, tlle rate of acemal '<vill be reduced so that the {\nnual Benefit

'<viII equal the lvIaximum Pen11issible Amount. NevCliheless, an Annual Benefit 'Nill not be

redueed if it is not more than $1,000 multiplied by a Pmiicipant's number of Years of Service

(not to exceed 10) or pmis thereof, with the Employer, if the Employer has not at any time

maintained a defined contribution plan, a welfare benefit plan as defined in section <119(e) of the

- 23 -
17Q2988vI



£b1G1pant partIcIpated.

Internal Revenue Code, or an individual medical acc ' .Internal!?,.' aunt as defined m ,e'HOld 15(1)(2) of the

~e ,enue Code 111 ,,\'hich such P ff . . .

Section 14 9~ g"efall T' . .., LimItatIOn. If the Pilltici ant' ",.
more than d _ P 15 Ol '" er ha, been covered undcr

one efined benefit plan maintained by the Employer tl ..

~ ay not exceed the Maximum Pm"missib1 A
erde t I . e "mount In

fO ac 11eve that result the AlB ., 1 rnnua· -enefit pa:\,' bl . h'J a e 111 t IS Plill1 vAll be limited.

Section 14.94 Definitions and Rules.

(a) Annual Additions. erl-r 1e sum ofthe fellomj

(1) Employer contributions'

(2) Employee contributions'

(~) FOffeitUfes; and

1Ga account, as defined in section

415(1)(2) ofthe Internal Revenue Cod ml' h .

Amounts allocated to an individual med' 1 '

e, ~,11C IS part of a pension or

annuity plan maintained by the Employ " .

(4)

e1 ill e tfeated as Annual "dd' t'_ n rr lIons

to a det111ed contribution plan.

Also, amounts derived from contlibutions paid or accrued aft D b

, ;) 1e ntemal Revenue Code, undef a welfare

benefit tund, as defined in seetion /119(e) of th I t. . e n emal Revenue Code,

mamtamed by the E 1 r' •mp oJ e1, ill e treated as Annual Add' f

Annual Benefit." fit f&lrement benefit under the PIa mI' h'n Vi11e IS payable annuall' r in

the fefm ofa stmight life annuity. Except as provided belm',', a benefit payabl: in

(b)

- 24-
17Q2988vl



a fuRTI other than a straight life annuity must be adjusted to an Actuarial

Equivalent straight life annuity before applying the limitations of this Aliicle.

The interest rate assumption used to detelmine the Actuarial Equivalent vAll be

the greater of the interest rate specified in defining that term herein or five percent

(5%). The Am1ual Benefit must not include any benefits attributable to Employee

contributions or rollover contributions or the assets transfelTed fl.·om a qualified

plan that ""vas not maintained by the Employer. No actumial adjustment to the

benefit is required for (I) the value of a qualified joint and survivor annuity, (2)

the value of benefits that are not directly related to retirement benefits (such as

qualified disability benefits, pre retirement death benefits, and post retirement

medical benefits), and (3) the value of post retirement cost ofliving increases

made in aecordance 'Nith section 415(d) ofthe Internal Revenue Code and section

1.415 3(c)(?)(iii) of the Federal Income Tax Regulations.
14.01 Limitation ofBenefits to Comply With Section 415. Effective for limitation years

beginning on or after July L 2007, and notwithstanding any Plan provisions to the contrary, in no

event may the maximum annual retirement benefit payable to a Pmiicipant under the Plan and

any other defined benefit plan of the Employer at any time within the limitation year exceed the

limitations contained in Internal Revenue Code Section 415as amended from time to time,

including, without limitation, P.L. 108-218, the Pension Funding Equity Act of 2004, P.L. 109

280, the Pension Protection Act of2006, and P.L. 110-458, the Worker, Retiree and Employer

Recovery Act of 2008 and the regulations and guidance issued thereunder. which are hereby

incorporated by reference, including, without limitation, the following definitions as set out

therein:

fa) The term "compensation" for purposes of compliance with the limitations

under Internal Revenue Code Section 415 shall include the following:

0) wages as repOlied for purposes of federal income tax on Form W-2;

(c) Compensation. A Participant's emned income, wages,

salaries and fees fur professional services (including for Plan Years

beginning after December 31, 1997,ilil elective deferrals as defined in

- 25 -
17Q2988vl



l1Q2.2£8.Yl

Section 402(g)(3) ofthe Intemal Revenue Code and salary reduction

contributions of the Participant not includible in his or her gross income

by reason of Section 125 or 132(t) of the Code) and other amounts

received for personal services actually rendered in the course of

employment '<'lith the Employer (including but not limited to, commissions

paid salesmen, compensation for services on the basis of a percentage of

the profits, commissions on insurance premiums, tips, and bonuses) and

excluding the follovv'ing:(including amounts not available to a Participant

in cash in lieu of group health coverage because the Participant is unable

to certify that he or she has other health coverage) or Section 132et) ofthe

Intemal Revenue Code: and

(1) EmplOyeeI' contributions to a plan of defened compensation \'lhich m'e not

included in the Employee's gross ineome for the taxable yem' in 'V/hieh

eontributed or Employer contributions under a simplified employee

pension plan to the extent such contributions m'e deductible by the

employee or any distributions f).om a plan of defened compensation;

(2) Amounts realized fi'om the exercise of a non qualified stock option, or

\\'hen restricted stock (or prop011y) held by the employee either becomes

freely transferable or is no longer subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture;

(3) Amounts realized from the sale, exchange or other disposition of stock

acquired under a qualified or incentive stock option; and

(4) Other amoants which received special tax benefits or contributions made

by the Employer (',"'hether or not under a salary reduction agreement)

to\vm'd the purchase of an annuity described in section 403(b) of the

Intemal Revenue Code (""'hether or not the amO'dnts are actually

excludable from the gross income onhe employee).

Compensation for any Limitation Year is the compensation actually paid or

includable in gross income during such year.

- 26-



CmTent Accrued Benefit. A P ..1," -mitolpant's Accrucd Benefit under the PI
d t ' an.

e ermmed as if the pmiicipant had separated fi'om sep'ice on D b ~, n :l:;iecemtJer :) 1

1986, '>vhen expressed as an annual eenefit within the· . , , 'meanmg of sectwn

415(e)(?) fth 1oenternal Revenue Code 1 d .t .., n e ermmmg the amount of 'I

Pmiicipant's Current Ad· ..1 £ccrue Benefit, the following shall ee disregarded'

(d)

o eac year, under section 415(d) of

the Code in SBch. manner as the Secretary shall p "e

, me enefit 90llar Limitation" is

$160,000, as adjusted, effective January 1 f h

n a ely ay J, 1986; and

------1(~2+)--:tA'\inCl-Jyf"-1'CeEo~stt-e4f::tIPv' 9-1''J%i:t€dlj-l':t&tfflCfTt-e€€tIffi.J'J%i:rfu~4m~.+.o.:~,£ 0 1vmg a Justment occurring after May 5, 1986,

(e) 9dined Benefit 90llar Limitation: The "gef .d B -

nmotion the numerator of"'h' I: h, . ~~ to'i IS t e sum of the

PartiCIpant's Projected Annual Benefits under the Plan ( d d

, , , n as adjusted under section 4l5(d) will apply

to l11mtatwn years ending v/ith or '<vithin the calendar veal' £01' ';vh' I th, .J 11 "lC-'1 ~e

adjustment applies,

gefined Benefit Fraction. A fi(f)

, ' m ame y the Employer).

and the denommator of which is the lesser of one hundred and t"'· t fi .f12 " " en y ve percent

~5 ;0) of the dollar limitation detennined for the L' 't '

~ yean m accordance '<'lith Section

lJ.05(h) hereof or one I' d d ','iun re and f01i)' percent (14 OO~) f th H', , ) 0 e 19hest Average

Compensatwn mcluding 'd', any a Justment under section 415 (e) of~ 1

rna e~ enue Code, or

getined Contlibution Fm l' A fi '

, .mp oyer for the cunent and

all pBor LImitation Years d th·· A_ ' ane nnnual Additions attrieutaele to all "velfare

vlon. H'aehon the numerator of which is the sum of

the Annual Additions to the Participant's account under an d f d "e me contneutlOn

plans (v,:hether or not terminated) ma' t' d em ame y the E I '

eenefit funds, as defined in section 119(e) of the lnte I R H

(g)

- 27-
17Q2988vl



individual medical accou t "n s, as defined m section '1 15(1)(2) oftl I

p OJ Cl, and the denominator of wh" ~" hf .. Ie HS I e

sum 0 the maximum ao- .Y . .. ogl egale amounts for the curren! and all prior bimilalioe

em s of serVICe 'Vvith t1 . E ' .lemplo) ei (regardless of v;hether ad· fi d ""

Re
J
'enue G " n ema
,ode m effect under section 415()( A

VI a -artICipant as ofthe first day ofthe fi t L" " "
Year b g" • fS Imllaaoe

eemnIng after December 31 1986"

numerator ofthis fi'action m"ll b " " J' ,e_ vile adjusted ifthe sum ofthis fraction and th

DefIned B f " eene it FractiOn mould otl "VI lerl'ise" d 1 Q

" " ,mone or more defined contribution

plans maIntmned by the Em 10 ' . w " "p )ei ",hICh were In existence on Mav 6 1986 th

U d' " e,wee... Uilder the lerms of this PI""

n er the adj1:lst t .men, an amount equal to the product of (1) tl .,

numemtor OfthiS fi'action Th" d: .I . IS a juslmenl IS

ca culated using th· fi· .e ~achons as they ",;ould b· .,

permanently subtracted fi'om the . .

c . . e eompuled as o! the and orllre last

imitatiOn Year b " .egmmng before Januarv 1 1987 d d' .. II> " , Em lSfegardmg - eIlEmges

In e teiIDS and cond' f fHons 0 the Plan made after May 6, 1986 but J • 0-

The Annual Addition for an ' L' . . T ".) imitatiOn '1 em' begmmng bef J
198 ere al1Uary I

7, shall not be recomputed to ~ t 'A " rea all Employer contributions as Alillual

ndditiOns.

(b) of the Intemal RevOime Code,

- 28 -

Employer. The Employer that ado ". .,. pts thiS Plan and all members of a controlled

giOUp of corporatiOns (as defined in section 41'1

(h)

17Q2988vl



_ ' as mo IRed bv sectIOn

<f 1)(h~~, or affiliated service ° , . .gI 0 dpS (as defined m section .~ 1'~(mj of the I . 0

as modified by sectior <I 1§l.h:l:l'1( );, all commonly controlled trad b"

d fi d

. . es or USlflesses (as

e ne lfl sectIOn '~l'~ (1 f 1'1~c) 0 t e Intemal Revenue Code d' ~ .

a an, any other ee.tity required to

be aggI°egated vlith the Employer ursu .

. The m'erage Compensation for the three

consecutive Years of g.' ,erVIce vnth the Employer that produces the highest

average.

CD Limitation Year. The Plan Year.

1 Odn,(k~ Maximum Permissi-l3le '\ill' t

rs 0 en Ice '<'nth the

Employer, the Defined Benefit Dollar Limitation is reduced b '

The lesser of the Defined Benefit ..,'DollaI LImItatIOn or one hundred

perceflt (1 GGo~~/ ofthe Participant's Highest" "erage C ', 1 no ompensatlOn.

If the P :1' 'aHclpant has fevler than ten (1 G~ Yea f g .. ' .

(l~

(2~

.1pa hereof) less thm'l ten (l Gj T h. 0 t e

extent prO' rid d' . I'• e In lOgu atlOns or in other guidance issued by the Intemal

Revenue gel" 'ice th d'',e prece mg sentence shall be appl' dIe separately Yvith

respect to each ch '1ange In he benefit structure of the Plan. If the

, ' 01 each Year of

gep'Ice ( ° I,01 part hereof) less than ten (l G~ TI d:, 'Ie a justments of this

&ubsection (k~P~ shall b .._ e applied In tIle denominator of the Defined

ems 0 er"Ice JJrlth tI I, "le emp oyer the

compensation lim' t t' . '1 a IOn IS reduced by one tenth (l q G~ f °

P rf -tbICIpant has fev;er than ten (l G~ Y . f g - ,

'J e reasonably

- 29-

Benefit Fraction based upon Years of g T' ,. el •Ice, Years of gervice shall

Include futtlre J'ea . .IS occumng befure the PaIiicipant's 1\fonnal R r

. . -' " on aInS t 'Ie date the

PaIilCipant reaches Nom'lal Retirement Age onI" if it can b

" " e Irement

age. guch future years shall include the veal' "thich c t' I

1702988vl



elm',', the dollar limitation fur benefits

commencing befure age sixty tvv'O (62) is reduced' dm accor-ance

"'lith the regulations prescribed by the Sec' t

_, 'te etmed Benefit Dollar Limitation as

reduced above, if necessary sl II b d

~artlClpant commences befure the Pa t' .. 1'lClpant

attams age sixty hvo (6)) tl· D· - -

,'taeetennined as follows:

(1\:) Subject to the rules of (4) b

anticipated that the Participant 'Nill receive a Year of Ser"ice f· I, 01 SUC'!

year.-

(3) If the annual benefit of the P .,

_ allclpant commences on or after age fifty five

(55), the Detmed Benefit Dollar L' 't f, lml a IOn shall be no less than $75,000

If the annual benefit of a Part' , 'lClpant commences before age fifty five (55)

then the Defined Benefit Dollar Limitation shall be the actuarial '

equivalent ofthe $7" 000 l' , ,-', tlmltatIOn payable at aQ:e fifty fi" C~) b 'b ~e )), ut m

no event shall the Defi d B -, neenefIt Dollar Limitation be less than $50 000

proVided that the Pa =t' , 'llclpant has at least fifteen (15) Years of S ., erVlce, To

determme actuarial 'F r 'eqUl •a ence, the mterest rate assumption is the greater

,0 e sectIOn 415(b)(2)(C).

(4) If ht e annual benefit of a P =( ,

_ 10 ,nn) ecrease 111 tile

Detmed Benefit Doll L' , ,arlmltatIOn detennined in accordance v/ith this

e.f the rate specified' tI p 1mle -tan or five percent (5°/) A [d '

aamClpant commences after the Pa .;.' ,, rn~~

attams age sixty fi"e (6 -) I.) ,he Defined Benefit Dollm' Limitation as

subsection (k)(4) shall not reflect the mOl=tality decrement to th tc ex-ent

t~at benefits 'NiH not be furfeited upon the death of the Participant.

If the annual benefit of P "(5)

reduced in (2) abO' 'e if n, v, ecessary, shall be increased so that it is the

beQ:innino= at tl P "bbleartlClpant's sixty fifth (65) bil=thday. To determine

- 30-
17Q2988vl



actuarial equi' 'aleHce tI ",~ ,1e 111terest rate assumption used is the lesser of tile

rate specified in th PI fi

seg111Hmg after Decemeer 31 1994 t1, , 11e

provisions of the Plan regardiHg the limitatioHs of Code section 415 are

amended as fullows:

~eaH or ~ve percent (5%),

(6) Effective for limitation ,'ear 13 .' .

The limitation a d fi d'se ne 111 Code section 415(13)(1 )(B) for defined

eenefit plans (199 'peIcent ofcompensatioH) no longer applies.

(a)

mcome recei' Ted a ",s a penSIOn, annuity, or similar allovmnce

as ilie result of the recipient eecoming disaeled 13

The early retireI11e t 'd' "n Ie0:1ctlOn (Code sectioH 415(e)(2)(C)) aHd the

19 year ph . l'~ ase 111 0 the defined eenefit plaH dollar limit (Code

section 415(B)(5)) ,,'{ill not apply to

(i)

(e)

"eHe~CIanes sUP'i"ors 0" t1, " ,I 1e estate

ofa Pmiicipant as a result of the death ofthe 12 i' .

aH10untS recei' Ted 13 '13 fi""(ii)

(c)

uc IOns under Code section 415(e)(2)(C) to

ilie doBar limitatioH do not apply to any qualified rf"

3lSeg111mng after Decemeer 31, 1997,

any repa,1nent ofcontrieutions and earnings regard"mg an amount

,;vhich '.vas previoasly refunded due to a furfeiture of """ "sen ICe credIt

under ilie Plan shall not ee taken into acco~lnt fur p'drposes of Code

section 415.

(d)

For purposes of ." "peImissIVe serVIce credit contrieutions made in

limitation yem"s 13 . .egmnmg after Decemeer 31 1997 th I" " ,

(e)

~ 31 -
J7Q2988vl



unless the accrued benefit derived fl· . . .om such contributIOns IS

treated as an annual benefit l' . ,or purposes of such Code section'

hov/e\,er, the Plan shall not l' '1 t . 'm 0 satIsfy the dollar limitations of

Code section 415(b)(l)E") d'"£ as a Justed for early commencement of

b fene ItS under Code section 415(b)(2)(C) solely becmlse of the

application of this provision.

Projected Annual BeneFIt. '1"'h ;\1: "1:"" -ennual Be ft d. ".ne1 asefined in subsection (b) oftl .

sectIon to nrh' 1 th lISHIC le Participant vwuld be·· . 1entit ed under the temlS of tl PI
as ' . . le an
;\ summg (1) the Participant will continue employment until Nonnal Retirement

nge under the Plml (or CUlTent age, iflater) and (2) the P =1' ., m lClpmlt's

Compensation for the cuI....e··llt b' 't t'T llni-a-lOll ¥ ea d 11

(1)

(m) ¥ear of8ervice. ;\ vn rear of 8ervice as defi d' 8 .

. . IS tOta 1)' alld pemlallently disabled

vv'Ithm the meanillg of section 415(c)(3)(C)C) fth. 1 0 e Internal Revenue Code

proVided that no more than Ol1e ¥ear of 8 .,.'. . 'el dce vnll be credited for My tnrel"e

month pmiod. ~i i

8ectioll 14.05 9 11o ar bimitation for +erminated E 1tft mp oyees In the e' ·efl! tft t t
e Maximum Pennissible;\ , 1 .. .~a a any time

nmount las limIted the Annu 1B .. -, .Parf.. a eneht of a Tenmnated Vested

. ~cIPmlt or a Retired Participant and such limitation is due to the gefi d B

Participant or Ret.. d P .. pphes to such Terminated Ve;;ted
11 e milCipant, then the Pmiicipallt's ;\ 11 1B -

- 32 -
1702988vl



NotwIthstanding any provision of Sectio 'n 11.04 to the contrary. the "H 'I' , , 0

ne enefit Dollar Limitation or the Highest i\verage

Compensation (both adjusted \\'here required as p'd 0

»ear s of part1ClpatlOn in the

Plan, the Defined Be fi D 0ne~tollar LimitatiOI~ shall be multiplied by

(A) If the P :f 0allclpant has fewer than lOr. 0 0 0

a fIacf (0) 1lOn, 1 t 'Ie numerator of \'{hich is tl b '

enommator ot

'Nhich is lOIn the c f 0

'Ie num er of years (or

part thereot) ofpa :{' 0 ,llelpatlOn m the Plan and (ii) the d 0 'I

, r~es nverage

Compensation shall be multiplied bv a fraction (i) th

,ase 0 a PmilCipant \\'ho has fewer than 10

years of sep 'i '1 1v ce vnH he employer the H' h: t A

J , enumerator

of'1/hich: is the number of 'ears) (or part thereot) of service 'fiith the

employe d (")l' an 11 the denominator of\\'hich is 10,

(B) lithe benefit of a P " 0~art1C1pant begms prior to age 62, the Defined

Benefit Dollar Limitation er I' b

p )able m the fonn ofa straight life

annuity beojn ' 1 'b' mng at He ear'her age tl t' h· '

pp Werle to the Pariicipant at such

earlier age is an annual benefit a r '

b'lw IS t e actuanal equivalent

oithe Defined Be fit D 1 '"neo lar Lm'lltatlOn applicable to the

Participant at a 62 ( e'ge ~ a 'Justed under ( A ) above if 'd)n v, requue., The

Defined Benefit Doll L' ,arumtation applicable at an age " . t

01 the acmanal equivalent (at sueh

age) of the Defined Be f ' ,ne It Dollar LImItation computed using the

- 33 -



interest rate ana =1 l'mOl a Ity table (or other tabular factor) specifiea

, sue age) of the

Definea Benefit Dollar Limitation computea us' 5

in the Plan ana (ii) the actuarial equi! 'alent (at h

mg a percent

interest rate ana th l'~e app lOable m01=1ality table as aefinea in the

Plan. Any aecrease in tho Dofi d B ~ne enefit Donar Limitation

aeterminea in accoraa . JT • h .nee o'lt thIS paragraph (B) shan not reflect a

mortalityaecre t 'fbmen 1 enefits are not B 'f' t a01 el 0 upon the death of

the Participant. If any benefits are forfeitea upon aeath, the full

mortality aecrement is taken into account.

lClpant attams

age 65, the Definea Be ft D 1 ...ne 10 lar LmntatIon applicable to the

lithe benefit ofa P rt' . .. [blCipant begms after the Part' . .(C)

Participant at the later a . . 11:ge IS t e ammal benefit payable in the fonn

'Ie e ned Benefit Dollar

Limitation applicabl te a an age after age 65 is aet . d .

of a straight life annuity beginning at the later age that is

actuarially equivalent to the D f .a ~e me Benefit Dollar Limitation

applicable to the Participant at age 65 (adjustea unaer (A) above if

. d 're U1 . . .q re ). The actuarIal equivalent oft! D fi

b ennme as (1) the

lesser of the actuarial equivalent (at S' h) ~lie age of the Defmed

Benefit Dollar Limitation .computea usmg the interest rate ana

sue 'I age) of the Defined Benefit

Dollar Limitation computed using 5 ' .

me m t'le

Plan. For these pm'pos l'es, morta Itl' between age 65 a a th

m01=1ality table (or other tabular factor) specifiea in the Plan and

(ii) the acromial equivalent (at ' I '

a pelOent mterest rate

assumption ana t11:e r biapp lOw e mortality table as aef a' I

- 34-
17Q2988vl



17Q2988vl

(iii) compensation paid after severance from employment as set out in

Treas. Reg.§ 1.415(c)-2(e)(3)'

au The term "limitation year" for purposes of this Section 14.01 means the

Plan Year.

- 35 -



ARTICLE 15

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 15.01 Exclusive Benefit. This Plan shall be for the exclusive benefit of

Participants and their Beneficiaries and all ofthe funds held by the Funding Agent shall be

exclusively devoted to such purpose. No portion of any such funds shall revert to or become the

property of the Employer prior to the termination of the Plan and the satisfaction of all liabilities

with respect to Participants and their Beneficiaries.

Section 15.02 Determination ofOualified Domestic Relations Order (Order). A

domestic relations order shall be treated as an Order hereunder provided such order specifically

creates or recognizes the existence of an alternate payee's right to, or assigns to an alternate

payee the right to, receive all or a portion of the benefits payable with respect to a Participant

under the Plan.

Section 15.03 Facility ofPayment. If the Employer shall receive evidence satisfactory to

it that any person entitled to receive any benefit hereunder is, at the time when such benefit

hecomes payable, physically, mentally or legally incompetent to receive such benefit and to give

a valid receipt therefor and that another individual or institution is then maintaining or has

custody of such person and that no guardian, committee or other representative of the estate of

such person shall have been duly appointed, the Employer may cause payment of such benefit to

such individual or institution maintaining or having the custody of such person, and the receipt of

such individual or institution shall be a valid and complete discharge for the payment of such

benefit. If a person dies before cashing any or all of the checks representing a payment or

payments due under the Plan, such payment or payments so payable to such deceased person

shall be made in the discretion of the Employer either to:

- 36 -
17Q2988vl



(a) the person or persons who would be entitled to the deceased person's personal

propeliy under the laws of the State of Connecticut (which shall also fix the

proportionate interest of such persons) ifthe person had died intestate a resident

of Connecticut at the time for such payment under the provisions of the Plan; or

(b) such relative or relatives of the deceased person by blood, marriage, or adoption

as the Board may select; or

(c) the estate ofthe deceased person.

Section 15.04 No Right to Continued Employment. Nothing in this Plan shall be

construed as giving any Employee of the Employer the right to be retained in the Employer's

employ or the right to any payment whatsoever except to the extent of the benefits provided for

in the Plan. The Employer expressly reserves the right to dismiss any Employee at any time

without liability for the effect which such dismissal might have upon the Employee as a

Participant in this Plan.

Section 15.05 Claims Procedure. Any denial of a claim for benefits under the Plan shall

be stated in writing by the Employer and delivered or mailed to the Participant or Beneficiary

whose claim for benefits has been denied, and shall set forth specific reasons for such denial,

written in a manner calculated to be understood by such Participant or Beneficiary. Within sixty

(60) days after receiving the notification of such denial, any such Participant or Beneficiary may

notify the Employer in writing of the Participant's desire for a review of such decision. Upon

such notification, the Employer shall schedule a review proceeding at which the Participant shall

restate the Participant's arguments for such claim to a representative of the Employer. The

Employer's decision following such hearing shall be made within thirty (30) days and shall be

communicated in writing to the Participant.

- 37 -
1702988vl



Section 15.06 Qualified Plan. The Plan is intended to be a governmental plan under

section 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code, and "qualified" as such under section 401 (a) of the

Internal Revenue Code. The Funding Agreement is intended to comply with all provisions of the

Internal Revenue Code relating to such trusts. All questions shall be resolved to be consistent

with such intent.

Section 15.07 Return of Employer Contributions Under Special Circumstances. Any

Employer contribution made under a mistake of fact may be returned to the Employer within one

year of such contribution. Contributions to the Plan are conditioned on the initial qualification of

the Plan under Section 401(a) ofthe Code, and if the Plan is found not to so qualify,

contributions made in respect of any period subsequent to the effective date of the

disqualification shall be returned to the contributor within one year after the denial of such initial

qualification.

Section 15.08 Special Rules Regarding Qualified Military Service (USERRA).

(a) General. Notwithstanding any provision ofthis Plan to the contrary,

contributions, benefits and service credit with respect to qualified military service

will be provided in accordance with section 414(u) of the Internal Revenue Code.

(b) Death Benefits. In the case of a death or disability occun-ing on or after January

1, 2007, if a Participant dies while perfonning qualified militarv service (as

defined in section 414(u)), the survivors of the Participant are entitled to any

additional benefits (other than benefit accruals relating to the period of qualified

military service) provided under the Plan as if the Participant had resumed and

then telminated employment on account of death.

(c) Benefit Accrual. For benefit accrual purposes, the Plan treats an individual who,

on or after January 1, 2007, dies or becomes disabled (as defined under the tenns

of the Plan) while perfonning qualified military service with respect to the

- 38 -
1702988vl



Employer as if the individual had resumed employment in accordance with the

individual's reemployment rights under USERRA. on the day preceding death or

disability (as the case may be) and terminated employment on the actual date of

death or disability. With respect to the period of said individual's qualified

military service, the Plan will treat said service as counting toward said

individual's Years of Service under the Plan.

(d) Determination of Benefits. To the extent the Plan requires employee

contributions in order for the Participant to accrue benefits under the Plan, then

the Plan will detelmine the amount of employee contributions of an individual

treated as reemployed under these provisions for purposes of applying Code

Section 414(u)(8)(C) on the basis of the individual's average actual employee

contributions for the lesser of: (j) the 12-month period of service with the Town

immediately prior to qualified military service: or (ij) if service with the Town is

less than such 12-month period, the actual length of continuous service with the

Town.

(e) Differential Wage Payments. For years beginning after December 31, 2008, ill

an individual receiving a differential wage payment from the Town, as defined by

Code Section 340lCh)(22, shall be treated as an Employee of the Town making the

payment. (2) the differential wage payment shall be treated as compensation, and

(3) the Plan shall not be treated as failing to meet the requirements of any

provision described in Code Section 414(u)(l )(C) by reason of any contribution

or benefit which is based on the differential wage payment.

Section 15.09 Rollover Contributions - Election Rules. Notwithstanding any provision

of the Plan to the contrary that would otherwise limit a Distributee's election under this

subsection, a Distributee may elect, at the time and in the manner prescribed by the Plan

- 39 -
1702988vl



Administrator in accordance with applicable regulations, to have any portion of an Eligible

Rollover Distribution paid directly to an Eligible Retirement Plan specified by the Distributee in

a Direct Rollover.

(a) A Distributee who is entitled to elect a Direct Rollover with respect to all or any

portion of a distribution but who does not make any election shall be deemed to

have rejected the Direct Rollover option.

(b) A Distributee who elects a Direct Rollover with respect to any Eligible Rollover

Distribution that is one in a series of installment payments made at least annually

over a period of less than 10 years shall be deemed to have made the same

election with respect to all subsequent Eligible Rollover Distributions in the series

unless and until the Distributee changes the election. A change of election shall

be accomplished by notifying the Plan Administrator of the change in the form

and manner prescribed by the Plan Administrator.

(c) No earlier than 90 days and no later than 30 daysWithin a reasonable period of

time before an Eligible Rollover Distribution is to be made (except to the extent

the Participant or Beneficiary elects in writing to 'Naive the thirty day peliod), and

in accordance with section 402(t) of the Internal Revenue Code and applicable

regulations, the Plan Administrator shall provide to the Distributee an explanation

ofthe right to elect a Direct Rollover, the federal tax withholding consequences of

failing to elect a Direct Rollover, the tax effects of making a rollover (other than a

Direct Rollover) to an Eligible Retirement Plan, and the tax rules applicable to

lump sum distributions, if applicable. A Distributee who elects a Direct Rollover

must provide all information that the Plan Administrator may require to complete

the Direct Rollover.

(d) For the purposes of this section, the following definitions will apply:

(1) An "Eligible Rollover Distribution" is any distribution of all or any

portion of the balance of the credit of the Distributee, except that an

- 40-
1702988vI



l1Q2.2.8.8vl

Eligible Rollover Distribution does not include: any distribution that is

one of a series of substantially equal periodic payments (at least annually)

made for the life (or the life expectancy) of the Distributee or the joint

lives (or joint life expectancies) of the Distributee and the Distributee's

designated beneficiary, or for a specified period of ten years or more; any

distribution to the extent such distribution is required under Section

40 I(a)(9) of the Internal Revenue Code; and the portion of any

distribution that is not includable in gross income (determined without

regard to the exclusion for net unrealized appreciation with respect to

employer securities). A portion of a distribution shall not fail to be an

eligible rollover distribution merely because the portion consists of after

tax employee contributions which are not includible in gross income.

However, such portion may be paid only to an individual retirement

account or annuity described in section 408(a) or (b) of the Code, or to a

qualified defined contribution plan described in section 401(a) or 403(a) of

the Code that agrees to separately account for amounts so transferred,

including separately accounting for the portion of such distribution which

is includible in gross income and the portion of such distribution which is

not so includible.

(2) A distribution ofless than $200 that would otherwise be an Eligible

Rollover Distribution with the meaning of item (al) shall not be an

Eligible Rollover Distribution if it is reasonable to expect that all such

distributions to the Distributee from the Plan during the same calendar

year will total less than $200.

(3) An "Eligible Retirement Plan" is an individual retirement account

described in Section 408(a) of the Internal Revenue Code, an individual

retirement annuity described in Section 408(b) of the Internal Revenue

- 41 -



17Q2988vl

Code or a qualified trust described in Section 401(a) ofthe Internal

Revenue Code, that accepts the Distributee's Eligible Rollover

Distribution. However, in the case of an Eligible Rollover Distribution to

the surviving spouse, anAn Eligible Retirement Plan is an individual

retirement account or individual retirement anm~ity. An eligible

retirement plan shall also mean an annuity contract described in section

403(b) ofthe Code and an eligible plan under section 457(b) of the Code

which is maintained by a state, political subdivision of a state, or any

agency or instrumentality of a state or political subdivision of a state and

which agrees to separately account for amounts transferred into such plan

from this plan. +heEffective for distributions made after December 31,

200 I, the definition of eligible retirement planEligible Retirement Plan

shall also apply in the case of a distribution to a surviving spouse, or to a

spouse or former spouse who is the alternate payee under a qualified

domestic relation order, as defined in section 414(p) ofthe Code. For

distributions made after December 31, 2007, a Participant may elect to roll

over directly <:i12);ligiblc_RoJl()verJ:>istributj<:m to a Roth IRA described in

section 408A(Q) ofthe Code.

(4) A "Distributee" includes an employee or former employee. In addition,

the employee's or former employee's surviving spouse and the employee's

or former employee's spouse or former spouse who is the alternate payee

under a qualified domestic relations order, as defined in Section 414(p) of

the Internal Revenue Code, are Distlibutees with regard to the interest of

the spouse or former spouse. Effective July L 2010, a non-spouse

Beneficiary who is a "designated beneficiary" under Code Section

40lCa)(9)(E), by a Direct Rollover (as defined above), may roll over all or

any pOliion ofhis or her distribution to an individual retirement account

- 42-



that the Beneficiary establishes for purposes of receiving the distribution.

In order to roll over the distribution, the disttibution otherwise must satisfy

the definition of an Eligible Rollover Distribution (as defined above). Any

disttibution made prior to July 1, 2010 is not subject to the direct rollover

requirements of Code Section 401 (a)(31) (including Code Section

401 (a)(31 )(B), the notice requirements of Code Section 402(f), or the

mandatory withholding requirements of Code Section 3405(c)). If the

Participant dies before his or her required beginning date and the non

spouse Beneficiary rolls over to an IRA the maximum amount eligible for

rollover. the Beneficiary may elect to use either the 5-year rule or the life

expectancy rule, pursuant to Treas. Reg. § 1.401 (a)(9)-3, A-4(c), in

determining the required minimum distlibutions from the IRA that

receives the non-spouse Beneficiary's distribution.

(5) A "Direct Rollover" is a payment by the Plan directly to the Eligible

Retirement Plan specified by the Distributee.

Section 15.10 Governing Law. The provisions of the Plan shall be construed,

administered and enforced according to the applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code,

and regulations thereunder, and the laws ofthe State of Connecticut.

Section 15.11 Gender and Number. Words used in the masculine include the feminine

gender, Words used in the singular or plural shall be construed as if plural or singular,

respectively, where they would so apply.

Section 15.12 Titles. Titles of articles and notes in margins are inserted for convenience

and shall not affect the meaning or construction of the Plan.

- 43 -
1702988vl



Dated: _

126375 Y.Ol

17Q2988vl

TOWN OF COLCHESTER

By _

Jenny Contois

Its First Selectman

- 44-



Document comparison by Workshare Professional on Tuesday, November 09,
20102:57:13 PM

Document 1 10

Description

Document 2 10

Description

Renderin set

interwovenSite://SG DMS/SG/426375/1
#426375v1 <SG> - Colchester/WORKING COpy Police
Pension
interwovenSite://SGDMS/SG/1702988/1
#1702988v1 <SG> - Colchester/2010 Restatement Police
Pension
standard

Count
Insertions
Deletions
Moved from
Moved to
Style change
Format changed
Total chan es

34
71

1
1
o
o

107



Gregg Schuster First Selectman

MEMORANDUM

To:

Cc:

From

Date:

Re:

Board of Selectmen

Gregg Schuster, First Selectman

1/3/11

Public Works Director Vacancy

The current Public Works Director has resigned his position. After much consideration and
examining other alternatives, I believe the best course of action is to fill this vacancy as soon
as possible within the existing organizational structure.

I have reviewed the Public Works Director job description and recommend revising it per
the attached document.

Recommended Motion - "Move to approve the revised job description of the Public Works
Director as recommended by the First Selectman."

Page 1 of 1

127 NORWICH AVENUE, COLCHESTER, CT 06415 • (860) 537-7220 • FAX (860) 537-0547





Town of Colchester

Job Description

Public Works
Director of Public Works

GENERAL STATEMENT OF DUTIES: Responsible to develop, manage, administer, supervise and direct
the programs and activities of the Public Works Department in the functional areas of road, sidewalk,
bridge, and storm water construction, maintenance and repair; snow and ice control; transfer station
management; vehicle and equipment maintenance; maintenance and operation of all services provided in
the Sewer and Water District. The Director of Public Works is required to exercise considerable
independent judgment in administering and managing the department and is responsible for maintaining
and improving upon the efficiency and effectiveness of all areas under his/her direction and control.

WORK HOURS: Monday - Friday, 8:00 a.m. - 4:30 p.m.(primarily), with occasional night
board/commission meetings.

SUPERVISOR: Work under the administrative direction of the First Selectman, established policies, and
Connecticut General Statutes.

SUPERVISION: Provides general supervision and oversees all departments that encompass pUblic
works including Fleet Maintenance, Highway, Sewer and Water, and Transfer Station

ESSENTIAL DUTIES:

The following is an illustrative and non-exhaustive list of duties:

1. Oversees and evaluates the total operation of all Public Works and Sewer and Water personnel
and activities.

2. Review, plan, recommend, and supervise repairs of roads, bridges, sidewalks, drainage, water
and sewer lines as needed

3. Plans, directs, coordinates construction, inspection, and maintenance of roads, bridges, storm
water, structures, water and sewer lines and other Town properties.

4. Inspects, along with the Town Engineer, roads and drainage systems for compliance with
requirements governing subdivisions

5. Organizes and implements duties, or performs as part of a team, in responding to natural or man
made emergencies; including snow and ice control.

6. Administers and directs transfer station operations, including hauling and disposal contracts;
oversees and coordinates the town recycling program, as designated recycling coordinator;
completes revenue and tonnage reports for transfer station; and complies with State reporting
requirements.

7. Administers and directs the preventative maintenance programs for all Town vehicles and
equipment.

8. Prepares specifications for the procurement of materials, contractor and consultant services and
prepares cost projections for all public work projects.

9. Investigates citizen/staff complaints and oversees corrective action as appropriate.

Revised 12-21-10 Public Works Director Page 1 of 3



10. Assures safe working conditions for employees through training programs as required by State
and Federal Agencies. Review and enforce DEP, EPA, OSHA and other public safety and health
directives, mandates, regulations and ordinances.

11. Works with Town Engineer to design and layout projects that are done by town employees;
oversee and inspects projects completed by outside contractors.

12. Consults with Town Engineer on special technical engineering problems
13. Assists subordinate supervisors as needed
14. Coordinates all public works activities with other Town departments and other local and State

governing agencies
15. Develops department policies and procedures and assigns, trains and supervises staff. Consults

with First Selectman on such personnel actions as hiring, termination, and discipline and obtains
approval from First Selectman for such personnel actions.

16. Prepares and administers operating budget for department; presents budget to the First
Selectman, Board of Selectman, Board of Finance, and the Sewer and Water Commission.

17. Submits oral and written reports to Town officials as needed.
18. Attends all monthly Sewer and Water Commission and Joint Facilities meetings and, when

necessary, Board of Selectmen, Board of Finance, and other Board or Commission meetings
19. Administers drug and alcohol testing program.
20. Perform related work as required
21. Comply with Town of Colchester Personnel Policies.

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES
1. Strong knowledge of the modern principles and practices of civil engineering and public works

operations as applied to the development and maintenance of streets, water and sewer
operations, and other public works functions

2. Practical, working knowledge of the principles and practices of organization, supervision and
finance administration in the operation of a public works department.

3. Thorough knowledge of OSHA Regulations as they apply to public works and utilities
4. Ability to plan, organize, assign, supervise and inspect the work of both civil engineers,

consultants, contactors and sUb-professional, technical subordinates and employees
5. Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with engineers, contractors, and

other public officials.
6. Ability to make knowledgeable evaluations of a public works program and to prepare complete

and accurate research and operational reports as required and assist the First Selectman and or
the Sewer and Water Commission when applicable

7. Must be able to deal effectively with staff, officials, and members of the public
8. Must have working knowledge of labor relations practices and procedures.
9. Must be able to perform the essential functions of the job with or without reasonable

accommodations.

EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE

1. The qualifications required would generally be acquired with a Bachelor's or Master's Degree in
Civil Engineering or Management, or the equivalent combination of education and training.

2. Supervisory and engineering experience, specifically as it relates to public works operations
3. Ability to plan, direct, coordinate, and manage
4. Strong personnel management skills
5. CT Drivers License

Revised 12-21-10 Public Works Director Page 2 of3



WORK ENVIRONMENT: It is the policy of the Town of Colchester to provide a safe and healthy
workplace for all employees. The Town of Colchester is committed to reducing and controlling the
frequency and severity of work-related accidents. It is the responsibility of every employee to report all
accidents, incidents and occupational illnesses, as well as any perceived hazardous conditions. While
performing the duties of employment, it is the employee's responsibility to work in a safe and responsible
manner. This includes following both OSHA and Town of Colchester safety policies.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee will makes frequent contact with other municipal
departments, state agencies, vendors and contractors and the general public; contacts may be in person,
by telephone, fax, e-mail, or at meetings. Such contacts will frequently require a high level of
persuasiveness and resourcefulness to resolve problems. This position requires occasional work outside
in various weather conditions.

Full-time; non-union; salary; exempt

This job description is not all-inclusive and is subject to change
by the Board of Selectmen at any time.

Revised 12-21-10 Public Works Director Page 3 of3





.fOBI!ESCRI~

Town of Colchester
Public Works Director Salary~$,

GENERAL STATEMENTOF DUTIES: Responsible for general supervisory work1

coordinating aU operations ofthe Public Works Department.. Dllties involve the direction,
coordination, review and eva!uationofPubHc Works, park maintenance~ landfill/transfer station
operations and services and aU areas ofutilities thatinclude water, sewer, street lighting, garbage
collection and other related work as required. Recommends departmental policies, develops
programs and work objectives for each division O'fthe department and the Town and resolves
supervisory and engineeringproblems.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED: Work under the administrative direction ofthe First Selectman
and ·is revieWed for consistency with Town policy and for results obtained.

SUPERVISION EXERCISED: Provides general supervision and oversees all departments that
encompass public works, e.g., Maintenance Department, Highway Department, Parks and
Recreation, LandfiIlITransfer Station facility and Utilities Department.

EXAMPLES OF DUTIES:

L

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.
7.

8.
9.

10.
11.
12.

13.

PJans, directs, coordinates and oversees the total operation ofall Public Works and
Utilities personnel and activities.
Periodically r~view the operations ofthe Public Works and Utilities Departments for the
purpose ofevaluating effectiveness ofoperations, procedures, policies and practices.
Subsequently, recommend to the First Selec.tmanandlor Utilities Commission. when
applicable, ways and means ofimproving services.
Review the pattemand recommend the layout or repair ofroads, bridges, streets,
sidewalks, drainage, water and sewer lines as needed•
.Plans, directs, coordinates construction. inspection and maintenance ofroads, bridges,
streets, storm water, parks. playgrounds, structures, water and sewer lines and other
Town properties,
Inspect. along with the. Town Engineer and Road Inspector, private roads for compliance
with requirements governing SUbdivision.
Plans and directs the disposal ofrefuse,
Prepare annual estimates forinclusion in budget and direct the daily expenditures of
allocated appropriations.
Consultwith the Town Engineer on special te.chnical engineering problems.
Coordinate all public works activities with other Town departments and other local and
State governmental. agencies.
Assists in hiring and training ofall departmental personnel as requested or needed.
Assist subordinate supervisors as needed.
Attend an monthly Utilities Commission meetings and, when necessary, the Board of
Selectmen meetings.
Perform related tasks as reqUired.

publicwk\direct<tt.wpS * Reyised EebruaQ:, 129.•1



J()bDe~ripti()n

Public Works Director
Page 2

KNOWLEDGES, ABILITIES AND SKILLS:

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.
7.
8.

Strong knowledge Qfthe modem principles and practices ofcivil engineering and public
works operations as applied to the development and maintenance ofstreets. water and
sewer operations and other pUblic works functiops.
Practical, working knowledgeofthe principles and practices oforganization. supervision
and finance administration in the operation ofa puhic works department.
Ability to.plantorganize. assign, supervise and inspect tbe work ofboilicivil.engineers.
consultants,. contractors and sub·professional, technical subordinates and employees.
Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationsbips witb engineers,
contnictors and other pubic officials.
Ability to make knowledgeable evaluations of apublic works program and to prepare
complete and accurater~b and operational reports as required and assist the First
Selectmanandlor the Utilities Commission wben applicable.
Must be able to deal effectively with staffand members ofthe public.
Must have working knowledge of labor relations practices and procedures.
Must be able to perform the essential functions ofthe job with or without reasonable
accommodation.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING:

1. Strong knowledge ofmodern principals and practices of civil engineering and pl,lblic
utilities required.

2. Bachelor orMastersofArtsdegtee in Civil Engineering desirable; Associates degree
required.

3. Complete knowledge ofOSHA Regulations as they apply to public works and utilities.
4. Extensive supervisory and engineering experience. specifically as it relates to public

works operation or any eqUivalentcombination of experience and training tbat prOVides
the required knowledge, skills and abilities.

5. A minimum offive (5) years relatedexperlence.
6. Ability t9plan, direct. coordin.ate and manage.
7. Strong personnel management skills.
8. Ability to deal effectivelywith staff,. officials and members ofthe public.
9. Working knowledge oflabor relations p.ractices and procedures.

Tl\i$~ab~rijlollcftlfRm-i .. otll5h.mdraportsib"iMmd__ "'I>/.<.I('~'"

of-.,.W;\<....~liiy, lljHI~~lIll~_~io~lIOIiI'"

punlh:»:lOdlreetor.wps. Revised FebnJlu·):,. J223



VEHICLE POLICY

DRAFT 1/2011



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section Page

1.0 Purpose 1

2.0 Management 2

3.0 Specifications 3

4.0 Usage 4
Authorization 4
Personal Use of Municipal Vehicles 5
Personal Vehicle Use for Business 5
Background Checks 6
Prohibited Practices 6
Training 7
Smoking 7

5.0 Maintenance 8
Maintenance 8
Vehicle Protection 9

Appendix I - Vehicle Inspection Form 11
Appendix II - Incident Report Form 12

Acknowledgment of Receipt Form 13



1.0 PURPOSE

The Town of Colchester vehicle policy is established to create standards of all
municipal vehicles and their use by town personnel; ensure compliance,
conformance, and safety of rules and procedures; reduce and minimize liabilities
to the town; increase vehicle performance and life spans through maintenance;
and to develop a system of tracking municipal vehicle use.



2.0 MANAGEMENT

Town of Colchester management, which includes department heads and the First
Selectman, are responsible for making sure all employees follow the guidelines
and rules set forth in this policy. This includes, but is not limited to, monitoring,
scheduling, ensuring compliance and the implementation of the policy, and
enforcement. Management will be responsible for disciplining employees who do
not follow the vehicle policy. Disciplinary action may be taken, up to and
including suspension of driving privileges or dismissal of the employee for
violating any part of this policy.

2



3.0 SPECIFICATIONS

I. All town vehicles will adhere to the following specifications:

a. All Highway Dump trucks will be orange, with the town seal on the
driver and front passenger doors. All lettering will be white with
similar font on all vehicles.

b. All Fire & EMS vehicle colors will be determined by the Fire Chief

c. All Police vehicle colors will be determined by the Police
Commission

d. All other municipal vehicles will be white, with the town seal on the
driver and front passenger doors. Underneath the seal will be the
Town website URL (www.colchesterct.gov).Alllettering will be
black and with similar font on all vehicles. Exceptions shall be
made with the approval of the First Selectman.

II. Any tampering or attempts to remove the town logo will result in
disciplinary action

III. All vehicles will be purchased and outfitted based on the needs of the
town and with guidance from department heads and the First
Selectman

IV. No modifications to the external/internal structure or of standard
equipment of any town vehicle is allowed unless authorized by the First
Selectman or his/her designee

V. All new vehicles shall be sent to Fleet Maintenance to be readied for
use, including: inspecting the vehicle, add to insurance, and inform the
Finance Department to add the vehicle to the fixed asset list of the
Town.

3



4.0 USAGE

I. Authorization

i) Any employee who is authorized to use a municipal vehicle must have
a valid drivers license and any other licenses/certifications, as are
required.

ii) Only those town employees who have obtained a Commercial Drivers
License (COL) may operate vehicles that, by State law, require their
operators to hold such a license. Any COL operator is subject to all
State and Federal rules, regulations, guidelines, and laws.

iii) Any employee who is authorized to use a municipal vehicle may lose
their authorization for any of the following reasons:

(1) The employee's drivers license has been suspended or revoked,
regardless of reason

(2) The employee has been classified as a "high-risk" driver

(3) An employee allows an unauthorized individual to drive a municipal
vehicle

(4) Violating department restrictions on use or improperly using a
vehicle based on department guidelines

(5) A violation of section 4(V)(i) of this policy

iv) Employees shall notify their supervisor, or the First Selectman, within
one (1) business day of any incident whereby the employee violates
section 4(1)(iii) of this Vehicle Policy

v) If any accident occurs during authorized use of municipal vehicles, the
following guidelines are to be followed:

(1) In the event of an accident ("damage to property or injury to
persons which is a result directly or indirectly from the motion of a
motor vehicle upon a trafficway"), all pertinent information shall be

4



exchanged. Should exchange of all pertinent information not be
possible, police shall be contacted

(2) If there is no damage to property, but there is damage to the
municipal vehicle, police to not need to be notified, but an Incident
Report Form (Appendix II) must be filled out and submitted to the
Department Head

(3) Regardless of the type of incident, if there any been any damage to
a municipal vehicle, an Incident Report must be filled out and
submitted to the Department Head

(4) In minor instances such as damage to mailboxes or other like
properties, report shall be made to the department supervisor with
restitution made in accordance with adopted policies

(5) Should any question exist regarding the proper handling of damage
or injury, the police shall be contacted

vi) If any accident occurs during unauthorized use of municipal vehicles,
in addition to whatever disciplinary action may be taken, the
responsible employee may be required to make financial restitution for
physical damages to the vehicles involved.

II. Personal Use of Municipal Vehicles

i) The First Selectman reserves the right to authorize use of municipal
vehicles for personal use at any time

ii) Outside of authorization from the First Selectman, the use of municipal
vehicles for personal use is prohibited, unless specifically stated within
the collective bargaining agreement.

III. Personal Vehicles Use for Business

i) Employees who use personal vehicles for municipal business are
subject to all the guidelines and procedures of this policy.

ii) Employees who use personal vehicles for municipal business are
subject to the following, additional responsibilities:

(1) Maintain automobile liability insurance limits no case less that the
minimum required by law for the State in which the driver resides.

(2) Maintain current state vehicle inspection.

5



(3) Maintain their personal automobile in safe, operating condition.

iii) The use of motorcycles for municipal business is prohibited.

IV. Background Checks

i) All Town employees who use or may use a Town vehicle shall have a
motor vehicle background check prior to use of any vehicle

ii) All Town employees who regularly use Town vehicles shall have a
motor vehicle background check performed annually

iii) Supervisors reserve the right to deny any employee from operating
Town vehicles if an employee's motor vehicle background check
returns with serious motor vehicle infractions

V. Prohibited Practices

i) Engaging in prohibited practices may result in disciplinary action. The
following are examples of prohibited practices:

(1) Disobeying traffic laws

(2) Allowing unauthorized people to operate municipal vehicles

(3) Use of electronic devices for any purpose whereby the device is a
distraction while driving, other than use of hands-free devices and
town-issued radios. Texting is explicitly prohibited while driving or
operating any municipal vehicle.

(4) Use of legal drugs and/or alcohol that may impair driving, or
possession of illegal drugs, or being found under the influence of
illegal drugs

(5) Refusal to submit to any test conducted by a law enforcement
agency or by a laboratory designated to determine blood-alcohol
content or drug impairment.

(6) Transportation of firearms (unless you are an authorized public
safety employee) or illegal materials, including distribution of illegal
drugs

(7) Convictions for a moving violation that results in the suspension or
revocation of license

(8) Transporting hitchhikers

6



(9) Pushing or towing another vehicle or a trailer, if not approved for
such use

(10) Using a radar detector in the vehicle

(11) Use of the vehicles for any illegal purpose

(12) Any other practice that is prohibited by the municipality

VI. Training

i) All drivers should complete basic safe driving training. Other topics
and materials should be provided by the municipality for more
advanced training.

ii) The department head should ensure that all training is documented,
including the course name, date completed, and driver's name and
identification.

VII. Smoking
i) Smoking cigarettes, cigars, pipes, or any other tobacco product with or

without a smoking device is prohibited while operating, or within, a
municipal vehicle.

7



5.0 MAINTENANCE

I. Maintenance

i) All employees who operate municipal vehicles shall be responsible for
keeping any vehicle they operate up to municipal standards.

ii) Regular Maintenance

(1) All vehicles will be registered with the Fleet Maintenance
department

(2) All vehicles will be placed on a fleet maintenance check-list, that
will keep inspections and regular maintenance on a strict schedule

(3) All vehicle operators will remove and discard of any personal items
and trash after using a municipal vehicle

(4) Any dirt, mud, or other materials that have accumulated on
windows and windshields should be removed after use of vehicle

(5) Any malfunctioning items should be reported promptly to Fleet
Maintenance, and the vehicle returned for servicing as soon as
possible

(6) Advertising decals, accessories, bumper stickers, and/or other
equipment shall not be added or installed on municipal vehicles
without the prior consent of management

(7) Regular and preventative maintenance and responsibilities, as
defined by the Vehicle Maintenance Schedule, is on file at Fleet
Maintenance.

(a) The Vehicle Maintenance Schedule shall be reviewed at least
once annually.

(8) Quarterly, as part of preventative maintenance, Fleet maintenance
shall complete the Driver's Vehicle Inspection Report (appendix I)
and keep it on file at the town garage

8



(a) If anything in the Driver's Vehicle Inspection Report is noted as
defective, appropriate action should be taken to correct the
defect immediately

(9) When Town employees are not able, due to time or schedule, to
perform regular maintenance to Town vehicles, the department
supervisor may allow employees to work overtime to complete
necessary maintenance, to stay on track with regular maintenance
schedules, with the approval of the First Selectman

iii) Unscheduled/Emergency Maintenance

(1) All vehicles used during snow/ice storms shall be washed within
thirty-six (36) hours after use, or on the Monday immediately
following a Friday or Weekend snow/ice storm.

(2) Any unscheduled vehicle maintenance will be documented by the
fleet maintenance supervisor, with a detailed description of the
maintenance performed, cost of maintenance, and number of hours
of maintenance performed

II. Vehicle Protection

i) All attempts will be made to keep Town vehicles in good, working
condition

ii) Drivers shall never leave the vehicle running or the keys in the ignition
when they are away from the vehicle. Exceptions will only be made
during snow storms and then, only when municipal employees will be
away from the vehicle for five (5) minutes or less.

iii) Always roll up the windows and lock the doors when away from the
vehicle. Exceptions will only be made when municipal vehicles are
parked at the Town Hall during normal business hours or with the
approval of the Department Head.

iv) Never leave valuables in plain view, even when the vehicle is locked.
Place them in locked locations if they cannot be taken with the driver

v) Do not leave personal identification documents, credit cards, or
valuables in the vehicle

vi) Employees must report incidents to the police immediately

9



(1) Employees must report incidents to their supervisor and complete
an Incident Report Form

(2) The department head will make sure the insurance company is
contacted immediately

vii) Whenever possible, Town vehicles will be stored in a garage, kept
under a roof or temporary covering, or any other structure that keeps
Town vehicles from direct contact with extreme weather elements

10



FLEET SAFETY PROGRAM APPENDICES

Appendix I
Driver's Vehicle Inspedion Form

DATE: TIME:

VEHICLE#: OPERATOR:

MILEAGE: LOCATION:

Suggested Procedures:

1. Check under hood
2. Start engine
3. Proceed with the in-cab check
4. Walk around and examine the vehicle

Vehicle Checklist:

ENGINE

D Cooling system
D Exhaust system

D Oil, water, windshield solvent

D Leaks - water, oil, fuel grease

D Belts - fan, alternator, compressor, etc.

IN CAB

D Cab condition (locks, latches, doors, mountings)

D Mirrors, windshield, windows

D Horn, wipers and washers

D Defroster, heater

D Low air warning device
D Instruments and gauges

D Emergency equipment - fire extinguishers,
D Seat belts

D Steering

D Brakes - service, parking

D Clutch

D Drive train

5. Look under for leaks
6. Test brakes, steering and transmission

before leaving
7. Recheck the equipment enroute

EXTERIOR

D Lights, flashers, signals
D Reflectors

D Tires, wheels, lugs, studs, drums

D Chassis -frame, tanks, battery box, etc.

D Suspension
D Brake hoses & connections

D Exhaust system

o Rear-end protection

o Cargo area condition - floor, walls, roof, doors

Completed by: _ Date: _

All Repairs Made. 0 (Check)

Certified by: Location: _

33

Date: _

11



DATE OF REPORT I I------

APPENDIX II

TOWN OF COLCHESTER
SAFETY AND HEALTH

MULTI-FUNCTION REPORT FORM

TYPE OF REPORT (CHECK ONE)

__INCIDENT REPORT
_CWSE CAIL REPORT
_IMMINENT DANGER REPORT
_SAFElY RElATED DISCRIMINATION I HARASSMENT REPORT

SKIP THIS SECITON IF REPORT IS MADE ANONYMOUSLY

PERSON REPORTING WORK TELEPHONE _
TITI...E/POsmON DEPARTMENT _

DATE OF OCCURRENCE__I__I__TIME OF OCCURRENCE AM PM
WERE YOU A PART OF, (CHECK ONE) OR A WITNESS OF THE ACTIVI1Y?
DEPARTMENT(S) INVOLVED ~

NAME OFPERSON(S) INVOLVED _

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY I FOLLOW UP TAKEN
FOllOWED UP BY DATE I I

ANONYMOUS REPORTS CAN BE DROPPED I.NSUGGESTION BOXES OR DROPPED OFF AT THE SELECTMAN'S OFFICE

SUGGESTION BOXES ARE LOCATED IN THE LOBBY OF THE TOWN HALL AND TOWN GARAGE AND AT THE FIRE DEPT.

ALL OTHER REPORTS TO BE TURNED IN TO sUPERVISOR

BRIEFLY DESCRIBE TIIE SITUATION, CONCERN OR ACTIVITY
IF NECESSARY ATTACH SEPARATE SHEET

12
Distribution: White - Selectman's Office, Canary - Accounting Office, Pink - Department Head



ACKNOWLEDGMENT

I hereby acknowledge that I have received and read a copy of the Colchester
Vehicle Policy. I agree to comply with the policy and procedures contained in the
policy.

Driver's Signature

Driver's Name (print)

Date

13





Maggie Wasicki

I~II~J(D
I I

TO:

FROM:

Board of Finance
Board of Selectmen
Board of Education
C.F.O.
Treasurer

Maggie Wasicki, Finance Director

Finance Director

Attached, please find the Health Insurance Account Analysis thru

127 NORWICH AVENUE, COLCHESTER, CT 064]5 • (860) 537-7226 • FAX (860) 537-723)



HEALTH ACCOUNT AS OF NOVEMBER 30,2010 -
-

BEG.BAL. INCOME INT.INC. EXP. MO.END BEG.BAL INCOME INT.INC. EXP. MO.END COMBINED

BOE BOE TOWN TOWN BALANCE

6/30/2010 $ 1,003,325.93 $ (402,789.29)

JULY $ 370,524.27 $ 38.28 $ (430,789.36) $ 943,099.12 $ 108,736.75 $ - $ (164,592.91) $ (458,645.45) $ 484,453.67

AUGUST $ 378,451.18 $ 37.62 $ (478,702.06) $ 842,885.86 $ 109,332.44 $ - $ (80,126.89) $ (429,439.90) $ 413,445.96

SEPTEMBER $ 423,423.68 $ 36.95 $ (423,106.94) $ 843,239.55 $ 107,342.92 $ - $ (71,837.53) $ (393,934.51 ) $ 449,305.04

OCTOBER $ 435,545.22 $ 45.17 $ (430,784.67) $ 848,045.27 $ 106,477.78 $ - $ (77,486.16) $ (364,942.89) $ 483,102.38

NOVEMBER $ 440,777.99 $ 40.72 $ (413,831.50) $ 875,032.48 $ 106,940.34 $ - $ (56,035.13) $ (314,037.68) $ 560,994.80

TOTAL $ 2,048,722.34 $ 198.74 $ (2,177,214.53) $ 875,032.48 .. $ 538,830.23 $ - $ (450,078.62) $ (314,037.68) ... $ 560,994.80

AVG.MO.EXP $ (435,442.91) $ (90,015.72)

BOE .. 2.01

TOWN
*** -3.49 -

-
COMBINED RESERVE 1.07

MAGGIE WASICKI - FINANCE DIRECTOR




